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CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT 

I am pleased to present to you, our shareholders, our Annual Report for 2013. In our second full year of 

operation our Company has successfully integrated the operating businesses and associated properties 

acquired in the previous period into an efficient group. 

Village National Today 

Village National owns seven sites strategically located within six key regional resource town centres with 

a clear focus on Queensland’s Bowen, Galilee and Surat Basins. Our Queensland mining and regional 

workers accommodation villages will be progressively developed to offer over 2,550  rooms (including 

over 550 current rooms) at Moranbah, Emerald, Moura, Banana, Tara and Townsville. 

Our overriding corporate goal is to build, manage and service Australia’s best quality accommodation 

for miners and regional workers and to provide a positive economic boost to the regional communities 

in which we are located. 

The decision by the Board, which was supported by shareholders at the meeting of 19 December 2013, 

to divest four non-core businesses (eight companies) will allow the Company to focus on the core 

properties in Emerald and Moranbah. The completion of the divestment should be finalised in the first 

half of this year. 

Some changes have occurred in the Company structure since our last report. The Board has welcomed 

new Directors David Franklyn and Noel Griffin following the departure of Peter Hay and Craig Napier. 

David and Noel have extensive experience in the financial analysis of companies, funds management, 

corporate finance, business management and investor relations. They both also have significant Board 

experience as a Directors of both private and public companies.   

Additionally, Chris Twible has been appointed Financial Controller and Company Secretary of Village 

National. I thank Peter, Craig and Andrew for their service to Village National through such an important 

phase of our Company’s evolution.  

Village National Growth 

Through a period of industry consolidation, Village National continued to pursue its strategy of focussing 

not only on the larger mining houses and companies, but also several promising junior minors. This 

strategy has been successful with the signing of an agreement with Eagle Downs for the provision of 

accommodation services for their initial contract in Moranbah. To provide a comprehensive service to 

Eagle Downs, Village National has installed a kitchen / dining facility capable of servicing 250-300 

clients and an additional 60 new rooms.  

Village National is pursuing growth opportunities in 2014 through the continued build-out of our existing 
properties, as demand increases, as well as assessing strategic facility management opportunities as 

they arise. 

Village National has also invested significant resources to obtain development approvals for our 

properties to ensure that Village National is able to expand as market demand improves. The status of 

these approvals is outlined below. 
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CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT CONTINUED  

Property Current Rooms 
Development 

Application Held 

Rooms Currently 

Being 

Negotiated with 

ULDA / Council 

Rooms to be 

demolished 
Total Rooms 

Roberts Street, 

Emerald 
24 176 212 24 388*  

Braddleys Lane, 

Tara 
25 210 - - 235 

Belyando Avenue, 

Moranbah 
178 899 - 178 899* 

Minehane Lane, 

Townsville 
28 286 246 28 246** 

Dawson Highway, 

Moura 
100 80 270 100 350* 

Pritchard Road, 

Emerald 
181 - 120 - 301 

Bowen Sreet,   

Banana 
26 144 - - 170 

Total 562 1,795 848 330 2,589* 

*    Total rooms at completion after existing rooms are demolished. 

**  Renegotiation of DA to improve site amenity. 

Forward Outlook 

The overall market conditions moved unfavourably in the 2013 as coal prices eased and a number of 

large mining companies delayed projects. 

The New Year has brought a degree of “tempered optimism” to the sector which may see demand 

increase over 2014. Village National has quality properties in excellent locations. The company, through 

the development approvals obtained over the past year is well poised to take advantage of market 

movements through the year. 

Appreciation 

I would like to thank the executive team, management, and all the employees at Village National for 

their commitment to Village National. The year ahead will continue to present many challenges and 

opportunities, and I assure you that the team is focussed on delivering for all stakeholders. 

 

Jennifer Hutson 

Chairperson 

25 March 2014 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

The directors present their report together with the consolidated financial statements of the Group 

comprising of Village National Holdings Limited (the Company), and its subsidiaries which it controlled 

at the end of or during the financial period ended 31 December 2013, and the auditor’s report thereon. 

The consolidated financial statements relate to the financial period 1 January 2013 to 31 December 

2013. The comparative period is from incorporation of Village National Pty Ltd (14 September 2011) to 

31 December 2012 to reflect the reverse acquisition of Village National Holdings Limited by Village 

National Pty Ltd as disclosed in the basis of preparation of the financial statements Note 2.   

Directors 

The directors of the Company at the end of the financial period and up to the date of this report are: 

Jennifer J Hutson B. Com, LLB, FAIM 

Chairperson – Non-Executive Director 

Appointed 14 May 2012 

Age 46 

Jenny Hutson is an investment banker and fund manager. 

Ms Hutson is an experienced corporate advisory and 

company director. She has over 20 years experience in 

complex corporate issues including capital raisings, 
mergers and acquisitions and debt structuring. 

Ms Hutson was previously the chairperson of an ASX listed 

global integrated accommodation and travel company. She 

is currently the chairperson of the ASX 200 company G8 

Education Limited.  Ms Hutson has previously been a 

director of Big River Timbers, the Royal Children’s Hospital 

Foundation and the centenary committee for Surf Life 

Saving Australia. 

 

David J Franklyn B. Econ  

Non-Executive Director 

Appointed 28 May 2013 

Age 50 

David has been involved in the financial services industry 

for over 25 years, with extensive experience in the financial 

analysis of companies, funds management, corporate 

finance, business management and investor relations. 

Previous roles include being Head of Research for a 

national stockbroker; General Manager Corporate 

Communications for an ASX 200 company, Executive 

Chairman of an emerging medical device company and 

Executive Director of a mining accommodation business. 

David has been the Managing Director of Entrust Funds 

Management, a boutique funds management business for 

the past nine years and is the Chairman of ASX listed 

Nomad Building Solutions Ltd. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED 

Noel J Griffin    

Non-Executive Director 

Appointed 21 January 2014 

Age 65 

Noel has extensive experience in management, operation 

and ownership of transport and agri businesses. From 

1982 to 1995, Noel was Managing Director of Refrigerated 

Roadways Pty Ltd which at one stage was the largest 

refrigerated carrier in Australia. TNT acquired the company 

in 1995 and Noel served for two years on the executive 

council of TNT. 

In addition to his interests in the transport industry, Noel 

was Managing Director and a shareholder of Table Grape 

Growers Pty Ltd from 1997 to 2003. Noel is also currently 

Non-Executive Director of Speciality Products Group Pty Ltd 

and ASX listed Centrepoint Alliance Ltd. 

Other Directors in Period 

Peter A Hay BE (Mining), B. Com, CA  

Non-Executive Director 

Appointed 17 July 2012                             

Resigned 18 October 2013 

Craig A Napier BE Hons (Chem.),                          

Grad Dip Mgmt, MBA  

Managing Director 

Appointed 17 July 2012                                 

Resigned 30 January 2014 

Company Secretary 

Mr Chris Twible B.Bus (Acc), CA was appointed as Company Secretary on 17 December 2013. Mr Twible 

was also appointed the position of Financial Controller on 1 January 2014. 

Mr Andrew Bond B.Bus (Acc), GAICD, CA resigned as Company Secretary of Village National Holdings 

Limited on 17 December 2013.  

Directors’ Meetings 

The number of directors’ meetings (including meetings of committees of directors) and number of 

meetings attended by each of the directors of the Company during the financial period are: 

Director                 Board Meetings 

 A B 

Jennifer Hutson 12 12 

Craig Napier 12 12 

David Franklyn* 

Noel Griffin** 

Peter Hay*** 

7 

- 

10 

7 

- 

10 

* David Franklyn was appointed as a director on 28 May 2013 

** Noel Griffin was appointed as a director on 21 January 2014 

*** Peter Hay resigned as a director on 18 October 2013 

A - Number of meetings attended 

B - Number of meetings held during the time the director held office during the year 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED 

Directors’ Interests 

At the date of this report, the beneficial interests of each director of the Company in the issued share 

capital of the Company are: 

Director    Held at date 

of this report 

Jennifer Hutson*    4,687,500 

David Franklyn*¹    13,312,500 

Noel Griffin*    1,225,000 

* Includes shares held by associates  

¹ David Franklyn is Managing Director of Entrust Funds Management Ltd which is the responsible entity and manager of the 

Esplanade Property Fund. The balance above includes 13,250,000 held by the Esplanade Property Fund and 62,500 held 

directly by Mr Franklyn and his associates.  

No shares were granted to Directors during the reporting period as compensation in the period ended 

31 December 2013. 

Option Holdings – options granted to Directors 

Director  Granted as 

remuneration 

Expired Held at 

date of this 

report 

Vested and 

exercisable 

at date of 

this report 

Craig Napier*  3,000,000 999,999 2,000,001 1,000,001 

* Held by an associate 

Option Holdings – unissued shares under option 

At the date of this report, the following unissued ordinary shares of the Company were under option: 

Number of options Exercise price Expiry date 

2,500,000 $1.115 31 December 2014 

2,500,002 $1.115 31 December 2015 

166,667 $1.20 31 December 2014 

166,667 $1.20 31 December 2015 

Shares issued in exercise of options 

There were no ordinary shares issued as a result of the exercise of options during or since the end of 

the financial period. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED 

Remuneration report  

The remuneration report is presented under the following sections: 

(a) Introduction 

(b) Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration 

(c) Details of remuneration 

(d) Employment/Service agreements 

(e) Share based compensation 

(a) Introduction 

The remuneration report details the remuneration arrangements for key management personnel (KMP) 

who are defined as those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and 

controlling the major activities of the Company and the Group, directly or indirectly, including any 

director (whether executive or otherwise) of Village National Holdings Limited. 

For the purposes of this report, the term “executive” includes the executive director and other senior 

executives of the  Group. 

(i) Non-executive directors 

Jennifer Hutson – Chairperson (non-executive)  

Peter Hay Director – Director (non-executive) – resigned 18 October 2013 

David John Franklyn – Director (non-executive)  

Noel James Griffin – Director (non-executive) – appointed 21 January 2014  

(ii) Executive director 

Craig Napier – Managing Director – resigned 30 January 2014 

(iii) Other executives (KMPs) 

Andrew Bond – Chief Financial Officer/Company Secretary — resigned as Company Secretary on 

17 December 2013 and from employment on 10 January 2014 

Nathan Marsh – General Manager Operations – resigned 13 February 2013 

Michael Previte – General Manager Operations – employed from 11 March 2013 

Gavan Boyle – Group General Manager Construction and Delivery – Contracted from 1 

December 2011 to 31 March 2013 when Kyronn Pty Ltd was divested 

 (b) Principles used to determine the nature and amount of remuneration  

The Group’s executive remuneration strategy is designed to attract, motivate and retain high performing 

individuals and align the interests of executives and shareholders. 

The Group’s remuneration structure satisfies the key criteria for good reward governance practices:- 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED 

 

 Competitiveness and reasonableness; 

 Performance linkage / alignment of executive compensation; 

 Acceptability to shareholders; 

 Individual circumstances; 

 Transparency; and 

 Capital management. 

The Group currently has in place a three-tiered remuneration approach with the following elements:- 

 An annual remuneration package; 

 Short-term incentives in the form of annual bonuses; and 

 Long-term incentives in the form of share options for certain executives. 

Non-Executive Directors 

Fees and payments reflect the demands which are made on, and the responsibilities of the directors. 

Non-executive director’s fees are reviewed annually by the Board. Non-executive directors currently do 

not receive share options or shares as part of their remuneration. 

Directors’ Fees 

The current base remuneration was set on 4 July 2012. Non-executive Director fees are determined 

within an aggregate Directors fee pool, currently $300,000. The following fees, exclusive of 

superannuation have applied since 4 July 2012:- 

 Chairperson    $70,000 per annum 

 Non-Executive Directors  $20,000 to 40,000 per annum 

Jennifer Hutson and Peter Hay both agreed to waive their right to Directors’ fees during the period 

ended 31 December 2012 and the year ended 31 December 2013. 

Executive Pay 

The executive remuneration and reward framework consists of three components being base pay and 

benefits (including superannuation), short-term performance incentives, and long-term incentives. The 

combination of these comprises the executive’s total remuneration. 

Base Pay 

Base pay is structured as a total employment cost package which may be delivered as a combination of 

cash and prescribed non-financial benefits at the executive’s discretion. 

Executives are offered a competitive base pay that comprises the fixed component of pay and rewards. 

Base pay for executives is reviewed annually to ensure that each executive’s pay is competitive to the 

market. An executive’s pay is also reviewed on promotion. 

There are no guaranteed base pay increases included in any executives’ employment agreement. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED  

Benefits 

Executives may as part of their remuneration package receive benefits such as car allowances, car 

parking and professional memberships. 

Superannuation 

Superannuation benefits are paid in accordance with executive employment agreements at the rate 

outlined in the Australian superannuation guarantee legislation. 

Short term Incentive (STI) 

The Group operates an annual STI program that is available to executives and awards a cash bonus 

subject to the attainment of clearly defined Group, business unit and individual measures.  

Actual STI payments awarded to each executive depend on the extent to which specific targets set at 

the beginning of the financial year are met. The targets consist of a number of key performance 

indicators (KPIs) covering financial and non-financial, corporate and individual measures of 

performance. 

The STI is based on percentages of the executives’ fixed annual remuneration base salary. The payment 

of the STI is at the discretion of the Board of Directors. The incentive is payable after the year’s financial 

results have been approved by the Board. 

Long term Incentive (LTI) 

A long term incentive plan is in place for eligible executives in order to align remuneration with the 

creation of shareholder value over the long-term. As such, LTI awards are only made to executives and 

other key talent who have an impact on the Group's long-term performance. Further details are outlined 

in Part (e) of this Remuneration Report. 

Specific details relating to the individual terms and conditions of employment for each executive are set 

out below. 

(c) Details of Remuneration 

Amounts of Remuneration 

Details of the remuneration of key management personnel of Village National Holdings Limited are set 

out in the following tables. 

The key management personnel of the Group includes the directors of Village National Holdings Limited 

outlined above and the following executive officers who report directly to the Managing Director and 

who have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group: 

 Andrew Bond – Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary (resigned as Company Secretary 
on 17 December 2013 and from employment on 10 January 2014); 

 Nathan Marsh – General Manager Operations (ceased employment on 13 February 2013); 

 Michael Previte – General Manager Operations (employed from 11 March 2013); 

 Gavin Boyle – General Manager Construction and Delivery (divestment of construction division 
on 31 March 2013). 

The following table provides the details of all directors of the Company and the key management 

personnel of the Group with authority and the nature and amount of the elements of their remuneration 

for the period ended 31 December 2013. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED 

2013 Short Term Employee Benefits Post-

employment 

benefits 

Share-based payments 

Total 

 Cash 

salary and 
fees 

Cash 

Bonus 

Other¹ 

 

Non-

monetary 
benefits 

Super-

annuation 

Options Remuneration 

relating to 
options 

 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ % $ 

 Non-executive Directors 

J Hutson 

 

- - - - - - - - 

D Franklyn 

(appointed 28 

May 2013) 

23,763 - - - 2,189 - - 25,952 

P Hay 

(resigned 18 Oct 
2013) 

- - - - - - - - 

 Executive Director 

C Napier 

(resigned 30 Jan 

2014) 

290,000 - 42,706 - 28,713 237,684 39.67% 599,103 

 Other Key Management Personnel 

A Bond 

(resigned 

Secretary 17 Dec 
2013 and 

employment 10 

Jan 2014) 

230,000 - 10,843 - 20,988 105,207 28.66% 367,038 

N Marsh 

(resigned 13 Feb 

2013) 

23,154 - - - 1,575 - - 24,729 

M Previte  

(employed 11 Mar 

2013) 

129,231 - 6,864 - 11,831 - - 147,926 

G Boyle 

(contracted to 31 

Mar 2013) 

75,000 - - - - - - 75,000 

Total 771,148 - 60,413 - 65,296 342,891 27.66% 1,239,748 

¹ Other short term employee benefits include any accrued annual leave entitlements expected to be used within 12 months. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED 

2012 Short Term Employee Benefits Post-

employment 

benefits 

Share-based payments 

Total 

 Cash 

salary and 
fees 

Cash 

Bonus 

Other¹ 

 

Non-

monetary 
benefits 

Super-

annuation 

Options Remuneration 

relating to 
options 

 

 $ $ $ $ $ $ % $ 

 Non-executive Directors 

J Hutson 

(appointed 14 

May 2012) ² 

44,301 - - - 3,987 - - 48,288 

M Greaves 

 

- - - - - - - - 

D Lomas 

 

- - - - - - - - 

P Hay ² 
 

18,711 - - - 1,684 - - 20,395 

 Executive Director 

C Napier 

 

145,000 - 23,654 - 13,050 255,666 58.45% 437,370 

 Other Key Management Personnel 

A Bond 

 

115,000 - 13,872 - 10,350 86,659 38.36% 225,881 

N Marsh 

 

97,423 - 7,807 - 8,768 - - 113,998 

G Boyle 

 

325,000 - - - - - - 325,000 

Total 745,435 - 45,333 - 37,839 342,325 29.23% 1,170,932 

¹ Other short term employee benefits include any accrued annual leave entitlements expected to be used within 12 months. 

² Jennifer Hutson and Peter Hay both agreed to waive their right to accrued Directors’ fees during the year and therefore the 

amounts above were subsequently reversed in the year ended 31 December 2013. 
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 (d) Employment/Service agreements 

On appointment to the Board, all non-executive directors enter into a service agreement with the 

Company in the form of a letter of appointment. The agreement summarises the Board policies and 

terms, including compensation, relevant to the office of director. 

Remuneration arrangements for key management personnel are formalised in employment 

agreements. Details of these contracts are provided below. 

 

Managing Director 

The Managing Director, Mr Napier, is employed under an ongoing contract which can be terminated with 

three months notice by either side. 

The terms of the present contract include: 

 Fixed remuneration is $290,000 per annum exclusive of superannuation, effective 1 July 2012, 
to be reviewed annually by the Board, 

 Motor vehicle allowance of $25,000 per annum, indexed at CPI per year, 

 Non-monetary benefits including car parking and professional memberships up to $1,000 in 
total. 

 Target STI opportunity is 50% of annual base salary.  

 Eligible to participate in Village National Holding Limited’s LTI plan on terms determined by the 
board. 

 

Chief Financial Officer / Company Secretary  

The Chief Financial Officer/Company Secretary, Mr Bond, was employed up to his resignation as 

Company Secretary effective 17 December 2013 and Chief Financial Officer effective 10 January 2014 

under an ongoing contract which could be terminated with two months notice by either side. 

The terms of the contract included: 

 Fixed remuneration is $230,000 per annum exclusive of superannuation, effective 1 July 2012, 
to be reviewed annually by the Board, 

 Non-monetary benefits including car parking and professional memberships up to $1,000 in 
total. 

 Target STI opportunity is 25% of annual base salary.  

 Eligible to participate in Village National Holding Limited’s LTI plan on terms determined by the 
board. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED 

 

General Manager Operations (employed 11 March 2013) 

The General Manager Operations, Mr Previte, is employed under an ongoing contract which could be 

terminated with four weeks notice. 

The terms of the contract include: 

 Fixed remuneration is $160,000 per annum exclusive of superannuation, to be reviewed 
annually by the Board, 

 A fully maintained vehicle, including fuel, for work and private use. 

 

(e) Share based compensation 

Options over shares in Village National Holdings Limited are issued under the Long Term Incentive Plan. 

This incentive plan is designed to provide long term incentives for executives and key personnel to 

deliver long term shareholder returns. 

Two separate series of options were granted on 1 July 2012:- 

 Series One issued to the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer at an exercise price of 
$1.115 per share, vesting and expiring in three tranches. 

 Series Two issued to the Managing Director at an exercise price of $1.20 per share, vesting and 
expiring in three Tranches. 

Details of the options outstanding are detailed in the tables below:- 

 

Series 

One 

Options 

Tranche Number 

of 

Options 

Commencement 

of Exercise 

Period 

Exercise Period Exercise 

Price Per 

Share 

Expiry Date 

C Napier* 2 833,333 1 July 2013 18 months from the 

commencement of the 

Exercise Period 

$1.115 31 

December 

2014 

C Napier* 3 833,334 1 July 2014 18 months from the 

commencement of the 

Exercise Period 

$1.115 31 

December 

2015 

A Bond* 2 333,333 1 July 2013 18 months from the 

commencement of the 

Exercise Period 

$1.115 31 

December 

2014 

A Bond* 3 333,334 1 July 2014 18 months from the 

commencement of the 

Exercise Period 

$1.115 31 

December 

2015 
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Series 

Two 

Options 

Tranche Number 

of 

Options 

Commencement 

of Exercise 

Period 

Exercise Period Exercise 

Price Per 

Share 

Expiry Date 

C Napier* 2 166,667 1 July 2013 18 months from the 

commencement of the 

Exercise Period 

$1.20  31 

December 

2014 

C Napier* 3 166,667 1 July 2014 18 months from the 

commencement of the 

Exercise Period 

$1.20  31 

December 

2015 

* Options issued to related party of executive. 

The assessed fair value of the options at grant date is expensed equally over the periods from grant 

date to vesting date. The fair value of options for all employees granted options was $1,527,670. The 

portion relating to the key management personnel is included in the remuneration table.  Fair values at 

grant date are determined using a trinominal option pricing model that takes into account the exercise 

price, the term of the option, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying 

share, the expected dividend yield and the risk-free interest rate for the term of the option. Model inputs 

for options granted were based on the following assumptions: 

 Risk free rate 2.65% 

 Share price $0.80 

 Volatility rate of 60% 

 Dividend yield of 0% 

  

9. Principal activities 

The principal activities of the Group during the course of the financial period were:- 

 master-planned accommodation solutions to Australia’s mining regions; and; 

 residential accommodation construction and associated project management (ceased from 31 
March 2013). 

 

10. Review of operations 

The Group reported a net loss after tax of $4,725,254 for the financial year ended 31 December 2013 

(2012: $4,482,978).  

Information on the operations and financial position of the Group and its business strategies and 

prospects is set out in the Chairperson’s Report on page 3 of this annual report. Key highlights 

included:- 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED  

 On 31 March 2013, the Group divested 100 percent of the shares and voting interests in Village 
National Constructions Pty Ltd, the construction division for cash consideration of $643,000 

and 3,437,500 shares in Village National Holdings Limited which are to be cancelled. The fair 

value of shares to be cancelled is $2,750,000. 

 On 27 November 2013, the Group entered into an agreement to sell 100 percent of the shares 
and voting interests in the subsidiaries associated with the Tara Hotel Motel, Banana Hotel 

Motel, Moura Caravan Park to Wellington Villages Pty Ltd (as outlined in the notice of meeting 

provided to shareholders and approved in the Extraordinary General Meeting on 19 December 

2013). Consideration included cash of $8,124,161 and 23,723,339 shares in Village National 

Holdings Limited which are to be cancelled. The fair value of shares to be cancelled is 

$8,263,419.   

 On 27 November 2013, the Group entered into an agreement to sell 100 percent of the shares 
and voting interests in the subsidiaries associated with the Magnetic Gateway Holiday Village to 

GBC Housing Pty Ltd (as outlined in the notice of meeting provided to shareholders and 

approved in the Extraordinary General Meeting on 19 December 2013). Consideration included 

cash of $2,657,201 and 7,759,027 shares in Village National Holdings Limited which are to be 

cancelled. The fair value of shares to be cancelled is $2,702,748.   

 At the Extraordinary General Meeting on 19 December 2013, the following transactions were 
also approved by shareholders which are yet to be completed as at balance date: 

o The Group will buy back and cancel 2,216,350 shares which were issued as a deposit in 

relation to the Blackwater contract (fair value $697,210).  

o The Group will cancel 3,437,500 shares which were the consideration for the sale of the 

Kyronn business, which was formerly the construction arm of the Group. 

 The Group will buy back and cancel 3,377,792 shares for $1 which are currently held by Creek 
Street Holdings Pty Ltd (an entity associated with Douglas Lomas) to ensure that Village 

National Shareholders are relatively better placed after the implementation of the restructure. 

The fair value of shares to be cancelled is $1,062,572. 

 A temporary kitchen was installed at Moura to increase the service offering. 

 An additional 40 rooms were installed at Moranbah increasing room numbers from 138 at 
acquisition to 178 rooms as at 31 December 2013. 

 Installation commenced on a temporary kitchen for Moranbah in December 2013 to increase 
the service offering. 

 

11. Significant changes in the state of affairs 

Other than those matters noted above, there have been no other significant changes in the state of 

affairs of the group during the year. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED  

 

12. Dividends 

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the financial period ended 31 

December 2013.  No dividends have been paid or declared during the financial period. 
  

13. Events subsequent to reporting date 

Since 31 December 2013, the group has been actively pursuing a refinancing of debt facilities. As at 

the date of issue of this report, no credit approved offer has been formalised. 

As at the date of this report, the divestment transactions approved by shareholders at the Extraordinary 

General Meeting are yet to be completed.  

Except for the matters noted above, no other circumstance has arisen since 31 December 2013 that 

has significantly affected, or may affect: 

(a) The group’s operations in future financial years; 

(b) The results of those operations in future financial years; or 

(c) The group’s state of affairs in future financial years. 

 

14. Likely developments 

Likely developments in the operations of the group that were not finalised at the date of this report 

include the execution of a two-year accommodation services agreement at Moranbah which is currently 

with the client for final approval and execution. Further to this it is envisaged that the divestment of 

non-core assets discussed above will occur in the first half of 2014. 

Further information about likely developments in the operations of the Group and the expected results 

of those operations in future financial years has not been included in this report because disclosure of 

the information would be likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Group. 

 

15. Environmental regulation 

The Group is subject to and complies with environmental regulations under State legislation in the 

management of its operations. The protection of the environment is an extremely important aspect 

within Group operations and a necessary element of good corporate citizenship.  

No incidents have been recorded and the Directors are not aware of any environmental issues which 

have had, or are likely to have, a material impact on the Group’s business. 

 

16. Indemnification of officers and auditors 

During or since the end of the financial period, the Group has not indemnified or made a relevant 

agreement to indemnify an officer or auditor of the Group against a liability incurred by such an officer 

or auditor.  In addition, the Group has not paid or agreed to pay, a premium in respect of a contract 
insuring against a liability incurred by an officer or auditor. 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT CONTINUED  

 

17. Non-audit Services 

During the period the Group’s auditor has performed certain other services in addition to their statutory 

duties. 

The board has considered the non-audit services provided during the period by the auditor and in 

accordance with written advice provided by resolution of the audit committee, is satisfied that the 

provision of those non-audit services during the period by the auditor is compatible with, and did not 

compromise, the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following 

reasons: 

 All non-audit services were subject to the corporate governance procedures adopted by the 
Group and have been reviewed by the board to ensure they do not impact the integrity and 

objectivity of the auditor; and 

 The non-audit services provided do not undermine the general principles relating to auditor 
independence as set out in APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, as they did 

not involve reviewing or auditing the auditor’s own work, acting in a management or decision 
making capacity for the Group, acting as an advocate for the Group or jointly sharing risks and 

rewards.   

Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor of the Group, Pitcher Partners, and its related 

practices for non-audit services provided during the period totalling $85,300 (2012: $18,750) exclusive 

of GST, are set out in note 35 to the financial statements. 

 

18. Proceedings on behalf of the Group 

The group entered a contract in July 2012 to purchase a property in Moranbah. The transaction did not 

proceed and legal proceedings commenced against the vendor for the recovery of a deposit. These 

proceedings were successful but were overturned on appeal. Costs of $866,061 including the deposit 

of $500,000 were incurred by the group. No further action is being taken is respect of this issue. 

There were no other legal proceedings or other legislative requirements during the year that have 

significantly impacted the results or operations of the Group. 

 

19. Lead auditor’s independence declaration 

The lead auditor’s independence declaration is attached and forms part of the directors’ report for the 

financial period ended 31 December 2013. 

This report is made with a resolution of the Directors: 

 

Jennifer Hutson 

Chairperson 

Dated at Brisbane 

25 March 2014 
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AUDITORS INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 
 
 

Note 2013 

$ 

 2012* 

$ 

Continuing operations 
 

     

Revenue 8 6,745,968  4,559,391 

Cost of goods sold 
 

(536,258)  (293,209) 

Gross profit 
 

6,209,710  4,266,182 

Employee benefits expense 9  (3,352,489)   (2,096,217) 

Depreciation and amortisation expense  (962,178)  (285,094) 

Administrative costs 
 

(891,359)  (470,885) 

Occupancy costs 
 

(974,262)  (493,779) 

Property acquisition costs  
 

(366,061)  (5,227,057) 

Impairment of assets 
 

(2,539,203)  - 

Profit / (loss) from operating activities 
 

(2,875,842)  (4,306,850) 

Finance income 
 

20,876  16,821 

Finance costs 
 

 (2,396,820)   (1,638,382) 

Net finance costs 10 (2,375,944)  (1,621,561) 

Loss before income tax 
 

(5,251,786)  (5,928,411) 

Tax (expense) / benefit 12 789,010  760,667 

Loss from continuing operations 
 

(4,462,776)  (5,167,744) 

Profit / (loss) from discontinued operations                               

net of income tax 

 

7 (262,478)  684,766 

Loss for the period 
 

(4,725,254)  (4,482,978) 

Other comprehensive income for the period  
 

-  - 

Total comprehensive loss for the period 
 

(4,725,254)  (4,482,978) 

 
    

Earnings / (loss) per share     

Basic and diluted earnings / (loss) per share 

(cents)  

27 (4.72)  (6.53) 

Earnings / (loss) per share from continuing 

operations (cents)  

27 (4.46)  (7.52) 

 

*for the period 14 September 2011 to 31 December 2012 

 

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.  
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013 
  

31 Dec 2013  31 Dec 2012 

 
Note $  $ 

Assets       

Cash and cash equivalents 28(a) 666,231  2,330,752 

Trade and other receivables 13 326,420  4,747,897 

Inventories 14 24,587   413,581  

Other assets 15 3,670,054  319,387 

Assets held for sale 7 22,294,459  - 

Total current assets  26,981,751  7,811,617 

Property, plant and equipment 16 43,506,981  66,679,310 

Intangible assets 17 1,200  3,576,498 

Deferred tax assets 18 1,376,315  945,086 

Other non-current assets 19 37,700  1,945,771 

Total non-current assets  44,922,196  73,146,665 

Total assets  71,903,947  80,958,282 

Liabilities       

Trade and other payables 20 842,520  1,780,807 

Borrowings 21 33,200,182  10,212,453 

Provisions 22 156,735  174,595 

Tax liabilities  338,743  381,332 

Other liabilities 23 10,045  78,090 

Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 7 387,203  - 

Total current liabilities  34,935,428  12,627,277 

Borrowings 21 -  27,350,077 

Provisions 22 -  22,813 

Deferred tax liabilities 24 -  27,722 

Total non-current liabilities  -  27,400,612 

Total liabilities  34,935,428  40,027 889 

Net assets  36,968,519  40,930,393 

Equity       

Issued capital 26 44,724,071  44,724,411 

Reserves  26 1,452,680  688,960 

Accumulated losses 
 

(9,208,232)  (4,482,978) 

Total equity 
 

36,968,519  40,930,393 

 

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 

 

Note 

Share capital 

$ 

Reserves 

$ 

Accumulated 

losses 

$ 

2013 

Total 

$ 

Balance at 1 January 2013 

 

44,724,411 688,960 (4,482,978) 40,930,393 

Loss for the year  

 

- - (4,725,254) (4,725,254) 

Total comprehensive loss for the year 

 

- - (4,725,254) (4,725,254) 

Transactions with owners, in their 

capacity as owners  

  

 

  
Share capital issued 

 

- - - - 

Shares issued relating to converting 

note 

 

- - - - 

Employee share options 34 - 763,720  763,720 

Equity raising costs, net of tax 26 (340) - - (340) 

Balance at 31 December 2013 

 

44,724,071 1,452,680 (9,208,232) 36,968,519 

 

 

Note 

Share capital 

$ 

Reserves 

$ 

Accumulated 

losses 

$ 

2012* 

Total 

$ 

Balance at 14 September 2011 

 

- - - - 

Loss for the period  

 

- - (4,482,978) (4,482,978) 

Total comprehensive loss for the 

period 

 

- - (4,482,978) (4,482,978) 

Transactions with owners, in their 

capacity as owners  

  

 

  
Share capital issued 26 36,623,080 - - 36,623,080 

Shares issued relating to converting 

note 26 10,000,000 - - 10,000,000 

Employee share options 34 - 688,960 - 688,960 

Equity raising costs, net of tax 26 (1,898,669) - - (1,898,669) 

Balance at 31 December 2012 

 

44,724,411 688,960 (4,482,978) 40,930,393 

 

*for the period 14 September 2011 to 31 December 2012 

 

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013 
 

 
Note 

2013 

$ 

 2012* 

$ 

Cash flows from operating activities 

 

     

Cash receipts from customers 

 

19,210,992  25,617,830 

Cash paid to suppliers and employees 

 

(14,638,488)  (28,019,415) 

Payment of borrowing related costs  (2,128,860)  (2,061,968) 

Interest received  20,876  18,228 

Taxes paid 

 

(179,081)  (216,544) 

Net cash from / (used in) operating activities 28(b) 2,285,439  (4,661,869) 

Cash flows from investing activities 

 

  

 
Payment for acquisition of business 

 

-  (56,978,976) 

Payment for property, plant and equipment 

 

(1,915,224)  (8,319,433) 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  18,851  - 

Loans and repayment to related parties  (514,686)  (751,275) 

Repayment by related parties 

 

101,276  30,000 

Payment for intangibles  (1,200)  (15,174) 

Deposits paid for acquisitions 

 

-  (500,000) 

Proceeds from sale of subsidiary net of cash disposed  2,976,281  - 

Net cash from / (used in) investing activities 

 

665,298  (66,534,858) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

 

  

 
Proceeds from issue of share capital 

 

-  28,460,000 

Proceeds from convertible note  -  10,000,000 

Payment of transaction costs related to share capital issue 

 

(340)  (2,427,930) 

Repayment of finance lease 

 

(5,521)  (14,511) 

Repayment of borrowings 

 

(3,111,170)  (2,209,729) 

Proceeds from related party working capital loans  800,000   

Proceeds from borrowings 

 

-  37,614,999 

Net cash from financing activities 

 

(2,317,031)  71,422,829 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

 

633,706  226,102 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the half year  226,102  - 

Cash and cash equivalents  28(a) 859,808  226,102 

 

*for the period 14 September 2011 to 31 December 2012 

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. Reporting entity 

Village National Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its controlled entities is a Group 

domiciled in Australia.  The address of the Company’s registered office and principal place of 

business is Level 23, Hancock Coal Building, 307 Queen Street, Brisbane QLD 4000.   

The consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year 31 December 

2013 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group” and 

individually as “Group entities”).  The Group is a for-profit entity and primarily is involved in 

delivering master-planned accommodation solutions to Australia’s mining regions. 

Village National Holdings Limited was incorporated on 14 May 2012.  The comparative 

consolidated financial statements relate to the financial period 14 September 2011 to 31 

December 2012 to reflect the reverse acquisition of Village National Pty Ltd as disclosed in 

basis of preparation Note 2(e).  

2. Basis of preparation 

(a) Statement of compliance 

The consolidated financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have 

been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (AASBs) adopted by the 

Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001. The consolidated 

financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) adopted 

by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). 

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 

March 2014. 

(b) Basis of measurement  

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. 

(c) Functional and presentation currency 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the 
Group’s functional currency, unless otherwise stated. 

(d) Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with AASBs requires 

management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 

accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.  

Actual results may differ from these estimates.   

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to 

accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any 

future periods affected. 

Information about critical judgements in applying accounting policies that have the most 

significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the 

following notes: 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

 note 3(n) - tax 

 note 7 – revenue - construction: basis of recognition of revenue 

 note 12 – recoverability of trade receivables and other receivables 

 note 16 – business combinations and goodwill 

 note 17 – utilisation of deferred tax asset 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are particularly relevant in calculating value-in-use for 

the purposes of assessing impairment on property, plant and equipment. 

(e) Reverse acquisition accounting 

AASB 3 Business Combinations requires an acquirer to be identified for all business 
combinations. The acquirer is the combining entity that obtains control of the other combining 

entities or businesses. The acquirer for accounting purposes need not be the legal parent entity.  

In situations where a number of existing entities are combined with a new legal parent entity, an 

existing entity can be the acquirer where the relevant factors indicate that it has control.  This is 

referred to as a reverse acquisition. 

On 31 May 2012 the Company acquired 100% of the issued shares of Village National Pty Ltd 

and its subsidiaries. 

The transaction has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition as the control of the Company 

upon completion of the acquisition was with the shareholders of Village National Pty Ltd. This 

has had the effect of accounting and reporting for the transaction as if Village National Pty Ltd 

acquired the Company and ignores the legal form of the transaction.  Whilst the consolidated 

financial statements are issued under the name of the legal parent (Village National Holdings 

Limited), they are deemed to be a continuation of the accounting subsidiary, Village National Pty 

Ltd. Accordingly, the consolidated financial result reflects the trading results of Village National 

Pty Ltd, and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2013. The comparative financials 

reflect the period, since incorporation of Village National Pty Ltd on 14 September 2011 to 31 

December 2012. 

3. Significant accounting policies 

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently by Group entities. 

(a) Basis of consolidation 

(i) Business combinations 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as at the acquisition 

date, which is the date on which control is transferred to the Group.  Control is the power to 

govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its 

activities.  In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights that 

currently are exercisable. 

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as: 

 the fair value of the consideration transferred; plus 

 the recognised amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree; plus  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

 if the business combination is achieved in stages, the fair value of the existing equity 
interest in the acquiree; less  

 the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and 
liabilities assumed. 

When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is recognised immediately in profit or 

loss. 

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing 

relationships. Such amounts are generally recognised in profit or loss.  

Transaction costs other than those associated with the issue of debt or equity securities, that 

the Group incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred. 

Any contingent consideration payable is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. If the 

contingent consideration is classified as equity, it is not remeasured and settlement is 

accounted for within equity. Otherwise, subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent 

consideration are recognised in profit or loss. 

When share-based payment awards (replacement awards) are required to be exchanged for 

awards held by the acquiree’s employees (acquiree’s awards) and relate to past services, then 

all or a portion of the amount of the acquirer’s replacement awards is included in measuring the 

consideration transferred in the business combination. This determination is based on the 

market-based value of the replacement awards compared with the market-based value of the 

acquiree’s awards and the extent to which the replacement awards relate to past and/or future 

service. 

(ii) Accounting for acquisitions of non-controlling interests 

Acquisitions of non-controlling interests are accounted for as transactions with owners in their 

capacity as owners and therefore no goodwill is recognised as a result of such transactions. The 

adjustments to non-controlling interests arising from transactions that do not involve the loss of 

control are based on a proportionate amount of the net assets of the subsidiary. 

(iii) Subsidiaries 

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.  The financial statements of subsidiaries are 

included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until 

the date that control ceases.  

(iv) Loss of control 

Upon the loss of control, the Group derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary, any 

non-controlling interests and the other components of equity related to the subsidiary. Any 

surplus or deficit arising on the loss of control is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains 

any interest in the previous subsidiary, then such interest is measured at fair value at the date 

that control is lost. Subsequently it is accounted for as an equity-accounted investee or as an 

available-for-sale financial asset depending on the level of influence retained. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

(v) Transactions eliminated on consolidation 

Intra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from 

intra-group transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.   

(b) Financial instruments 

(i) Non-derivative financial assets 

The Group initially recognises loans and receivables on the date that they are originated. All 

other financial assets (including assets designated at fair value through profit or loss) are 

recognised initially on the trade date at which the Group becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument.  

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the 

asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows on the financial asset 

in a transaction in which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 

asset are transferred. Any interest in transferred financial assets that is created or retained by 

the Group is recognised as a separate asset or liability.  

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of 

financial position when, and only when, the Group has a legal right to offset the amounts and 

intends either to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability 

simultaneously. 

The Group has the following non-derivative financial assets:   

Loans and receivables 

Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 

quoted in an active market.  Such assets are recognised initially at fair value plus any directly 

attributable transaction costs.  Subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables are 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses 

(see note 5(iv)). 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits with original maturities of 
three months or less from the acquisition date that are subject to an insignificant risk of 

changes in their fair value, and are used by the Group in the management of its short-term 

commitments. 

(ii) Non-derivative financial liabilities 

The Group initially recognises debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities on the date that 

they are originated.  All other financial liabilities (including liabilities designated at fair value 

through profit or loss) are recognised initially on the trade date at which the Group becomes a 

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.   

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or 

cancelled or expire. 

The Group classifies non-derivative financial liabilities into the other financial liabilities category. 

Such financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value less any directly attributable 

transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, these financial liabilities are measured at 

amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

Other financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts and trade and other 

payables. 

Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash 

management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the 

statement of cash flows. 

(iii) Share capital 

Ordinary shares 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.  Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of 

ordinary shares and share options are recognised as a deduction from equity, net of any tax 

effects.   

Convertible notes which bear the same risks and rewards as shareholders are treated as equity 

(shares issued) as opposed to debt funding. 

(iv) Compound financial instruments 

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise convertible notes that can be 

converted to share capital at the option of the holder, and for which the number of shares to be 

issued is fixed.  

The liability component of a compound financial instrument is recognised initially at the fair 

value of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option.  The equity component 

is recognised initially at the difference between the fair value of the compound financial 

instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component.  Any directly attributable 

transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity components in proportion to their initial 

carrying amounts. 

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial instrument is 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.  The equity component of a 

compound financial instrument is not remeasured subsequent to initial recognition. 

Interest related to the financial liability is recognised in profit or loss.  On conversion, the 

financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognised. 

(c) Property, plant and equipment 

(i) Recognition and measurement 

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation 

and accumulated impairment losses.   

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.  The cost of 

self-constructed assets includes the following: 

 the cost of materials and direct labour,  

 any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their 
intended use, 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

 when the Group has an obligation to remove the assets or restore the site, an estimate of 
the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are 

located, and  

 capitalised borrowing costs.   

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are 

accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Any gains and losses on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment (calculated as the 

difference between the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is 

recognised in profit or loss 

(ii) Subsequent costs 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is probable that the future economic 

benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group. Ongoing repairs and 

maintenance is expensed as incurred.  

(iii) Depreciation 

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis in profit or loss 

over the estimated useful lives of each component. Hire purchased assets are depreciated over 

the shorter of the hire purchase term and their useful lives unless it is reasonably certain that 

the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the hire purchase term. Land is not depreciated. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated from the date that they are installed 

and are ready for use, or in respect of internally constructed assets, from the date that the asset 

is completed and ready for use. 

The estimated useful lives for significant items of property, plant and equipment are as follows: 

 buildings 20 - 40 years 

 furniture and fittings 5 - 10 years 

 motor vehicles 5 years 

 office equipment 1 - 5 years 

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-

end and adjusted if appropriate.   

(d) Intangible assets and goodwill 

(i) Goodwill 

Goodwill that arises upon the acquisition of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. For the 

measurement of goodwill at initial recognition, see note 3(a)(i). 

Subsequent measurement 

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

(ii) Other intangible assets 

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group and have finite useful lives are measured 

at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses over their useful life 

which is deemed to be 3 to 5 years for software. Other intangible assets which are deemed to 

have an indefinite useful life, such as gaming licences, are measured at cost less any 

accumulated impairment charges. 

(iii) Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits 

embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.  All other expenditure, including expenditure 

on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in profit or loss as incurred. 

(iv) Amortisation 

Except for goodwill and gaming licenses, intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis 

in profit or loss over their estimated useful lives, from the date that they are available for use.   

Amortisation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial period-

end and adjusted if appropriate. 

(e) Leased assets 

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of 

ownership are classified as finance leases.  On initial recognition the leased asset is measured 

at an amount equal to the lower of its fair value and the present value of the minimum lease 

payments.  Subsequent to initial recognition, the asset is accounted for in accordance with the 

accounting policy applicable to that asset.  

Other leases are operating leases and are not recognised in the Group’s statement of financial 

position.   

(f) Inventories 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.  The cost of inventories 

is based on the first-in first-out principle, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the 

inventories, production or conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to their 
existing location and condition.   

(g) Construction contracts in progress 

Construction contracts in progress represents the gross unbilled amount expected to be 

collected from customers for contract work performed to date.  It is measured at cost plus profit 

recognised to date (see note (3(k)(iii)) less progress billings and recognised losses.  Cost 

includes all expenditure related directly to specific projects and an allocation of fixed and 

variable overheads incurred in the Group’s contract activities based on normal operating 

capacity. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

Construction contracts in progress is presented as part of work in progress in the statement of 

financial position for all contracts in which costs incurred plus recognised profits exceed 

progress billings.  If progress billings exceed costs incurred plus recognised profits, then the 

difference is presented as deferred income/revenue in the statement of financial position. 

(h) Impairment 

(i) Non-derivative financial assets 

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting 

date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired.  A financial asset is 

impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that 

occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event(s) had an impact on 

the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably. 

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency by a 

debtor, restructuring of an amount due to the Group on terms that the Group would not consider 

otherwise, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, the disappearance of an 

active market for a security. In addition, for an investment in an equity security, a significant or 

prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment.  

Financial assets measured at amortised cost 

The Group considers evidence of impairment for financial assets measured at amortised cost 

(loans and receivables) at both a specific asset and collective level.  All individually significant 

assets are assessed for specific impairment.  Those found not to be specifically impaired are 

then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet identified.  

Assets that are not individually significant are collectively assessed for impairment by grouping 

together assets with similar risk characteristics.  

In assessing collective impairment the Group uses historical trends of the probability of default, 

timing of recoveries and the amount of loss incurred, adjusted for management’s judgement as 

to whether current economic and credit conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to 

be greater or less than suggested by historical trends.  

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as 

the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash 

flows discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. Losses are recognised in profit or 

loss and reflected in an allowance account against receivables. Interest on the impaired asset 

continues to be recognised. When an event occurring after the impairment was recognised 

causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed 

through profit or loss. 

(ii) Non-financial assets 

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred 

tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of 

impairment.  If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.  

Goodwill and indefinite life intangible assets are tested annually for impairment. An impairment 

loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its related cash-generating unit (CGU) 

exceeds its recoverable amount. 

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair 

value less costs to sell.  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are  
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discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.  For the purpose of 

impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the 

smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely 

independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.  Subject to an operating segment 

ceiling test, CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated are aggregated so that the level at which 

impairment is tested reflects the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal 

reporting purposes.  Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to groups of CGUs 

that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. 

(i) Employee benefits 

(i) Defined contribution plans  

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed 

contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay 

further amounts.  Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as 

an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered 

by employees.  Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due more than 12 months 

after the end of the period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their 

present value. 

(ii) Termination benefits 

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the Group is demonstrably committed, 

without realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate 

employment before the normal retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of 

an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.  Termination benefits for voluntary 

redundancies are recognised as an expense if the Group has made an offer of voluntary 

redundancy, it is probable that the offer will be accepted, and the number of acceptances can 

be estimated reliably.  If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting period, 

then they are discounted to their present value. 

(iii) Short-term employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are 

expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expected to 

be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or 

constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee 

and the obligation can be estimated reliably. 

(iv) Share-based payment transactions 

The grant date fair value of share-based payment awards granted to employees is recognised as 

an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the 

employees unconditionally become entitled to the awards.  The amount recognised as an 

expense is adjusted to reflect the number of awards for which the related service and non-

market performance conditions are expected to be met, such that the amount ultimately 

recognised as an expense is based on the number of awards that do not meet the related  
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service and non-market performance conditions at the vesting date.  For share-based payment 

awards with non-vesting conditions, the grant date fair value of the share-based payment is 

measured to reflect such conditions and there is no true-up for differences between expected 

and actual outcomes.  

(j) Provisions 

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Group has a present legal or 

constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of 

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.  Provisions are determined by 

discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market 

assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.  The unwinding of 

the discount is recognised as a finance cost. 

(i) Warranties 

A provision for warranties is recognised when the construction services are rendered. The 

provision is based on historical warranty data and a weighting of all possible outcomes against 

their associated probabilities. 

(ii) Onerous contracts 

A provision for onerous contracts is recognised when the expected benefits to be derived by the 

Group from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its obligations under the 

contract.  The provision is measured at the present value of the lower of the expected cost of 

terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Before a 

provision is established, the Group recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated 

with that contract. 

(k) Revenue 

(i) Goods sold 

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value 

of the consideration received or receivable, net of returns, trade discounts and volume rebates.  

Revenue is recognised when persuasive evidence exists,  that the significant risks and rewards 
of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the consideration is probable, the 

associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing 

management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.  

If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then 

the discount is recognised as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognised. 

(ii) Services 

Revenue from services rendered is recognised in profit or loss where it is probable that the 

economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount to be received and the stage of 

completion of the contract can be reliably measured. 

(iii) Construction contracts 

Contract revenue includes the initial amount agreed in the contract plus any variations in 

contract work, claims and incentive payments, to the extent that it is probable that they will 

result in revenue and can be measured reliably.  As soon as the outcome of a construction  
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contract can be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised in profit or loss in proportion 

to the stage of completion of the contract.  Contract expenses are recognised as incurred unless 

they create an asset related to future contract activity. 

The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work performed.  When the 

outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised 

only to the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be recoverable.  An expected loss 

on a contract is recognised immediately in profit or loss. 

(iv) Commissions 

When the Group acts in the capacity of an agent rather than as the principal in a transaction, 

the revenue recognised is the net amount of commission made by the Group. 

(l) Leases 

(i) Lease payments 

Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis 

over the term of the lease.  Lease incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the 

total lease expense, over the term of the lease.  

Minimum lease payments made under finance leases are apportioned between the finance 

expense and the reduction of the outstanding liability.  The finance expense is allocated to each 

period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the 

remaining balance of the liability. 

(ii) Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease 

At inception of an arrangement, the Group determines whether such an arrangement is or 

contains a lease. This will be the case if the following two criteria are met: 

 the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets; and 

 the arrangement contains a right to use the asset(s).  

At inception or upon reassessment of the arrangement, the Group separates payments and 

other consideration required by such an arrangement into those for the lease and those for 

other elements on the basis of their relative fair values. If the Group concludes for a finance 

lease that it is impracticable to separate the payments reliably, an asset and a liability are 

recognised at an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. Subsequently the 

liability is reduced as payments are made and an imputed finance charge on the liability is 

recognised using the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. 

(m) Finance income and finance costs 

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested (including available-for-sale 

financial assets), dividend income, gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, 

changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, gains on the re-

measurement to fair value of any pre-existing interest in an acquiree, gains on hedging 

instruments that are recognised in profit or loss and reclassifications of amounts previously 

recognised in other comprehensive income.  Interest income is recognised as it accrues in profit 

or loss, using the effective interest method.  Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on  
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the date that the Group’s right to receive payment is established, which in the case of quoted 

securities is the ex-dividend date.  

Finance costs comprise interest expense on borrowings, unwinding of the discount on 

provisions, dividends on preference shares classified as liabilities, changes in the fair value of 

financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, impairment losses recognised on financial 

assets (other than trade receivables), and losses on hedging instruments that are recognised in 

profit or loss and reclassifications of amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive 

income. 

Borrowing costs that are not directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of 

a qualifying asset are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method. 

(n) Tax 

Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.  Current and deferred tax are recognised in 

profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items recognised 

directly in equity or in other comprehensive income. 

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the 

period, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any 

adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous periods. Current tax payable also includes any 

tax liability arising from the declaration of dividends. 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of 

assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation 

purposes.  Deferred tax is not recognised for: 

 temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is 
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss 

 temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries and associates and jointly 
controlled entities to the extent that it is probable that they will not reverse in the 

foreseeable future 

 taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.   

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary 

differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting 

date.  

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax the Group takes into account the impact 

of uncertain tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Group 

believes that its accruals for tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its 
assessment of many factors, including interpretations of tax law and prior experience. This 

assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series of judgements about 

future events. New information may become available that causes the Group to change its 

judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilities will 

impact tax expense in the period that such a determination is made. 
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset 

current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax 

authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current 

tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised 

simultaneously. 

A deferred tax asset is recognised for unused tax losses, tax credits and deductible temporary 

differences, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against 

which they can be utilised.  Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are 

reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. 

Additional income tax expenses that arise from the distribution of cash dividends are recognised 

at the same time that the liability to pay the related dividend is recognised.  The Group does not 

distribute non-cash assets as dividends to its shareholders. 

The Company and its wholly-owned Australian resident entities are part of a tax-consolidated 

group. As a consequence, all members of the tax-consolidated group are taxed as a single 

entity. The head entity within the tax-consolidated group is Village National Holdings Limited. 

Each entity within the tax consolidated group recognises their own current and deferred tax 

amounts in respect of transactions, events and balances of the entity. The parent entity 

assumes the current tax liability and any deferred tax assets relating to tax losses, arising in 

each subsidiary. Each subsidiary is required to funds its own share of income taxes. 

(o) Segment reporting 

Segment results that are reported to the Board include items directly attributable to a segment 

as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis.  Unallocated items comprise 

mainly corporate assets (primarily the Company’s headquarters), head office expenses, and 

income tax assets and liabilities. 

4. New standards and interpretations   

(a) New accounting standards adopted 

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for 
annual periods beginning 1 January 2013 and for subsequent periods: 

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, AASB 11 Joint Arrangements, AASB 12 Disclosure 

of Interests in Other Entities, AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 

arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards, AASB 2012-10 Amendments 

to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance and Other Amendments (effective 1 

January 2013) 

In August 2011, the AASB issued a suite of new standards which address the accounting for 

joint arrangements, consolidated financial statements and associated disclosures.  

AASB 10 replaces all of the guidance on control and consolidation in AASB 127 Consolidated 

and Separate Financial Statements, and Interpretation 12 Consolidation – Special Purpose 

Entities. The core principle that a consolidated entity presents a parent and its subsidiaries as if 

they are a single economic entity remains unchanged, as do the mechanics of consolidation. 

However, the standard introduces a single definition of control that applies to all entities. It 

focuses on the need to have both power and rights or exposure to variable returns.  
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Power is the current ability to direct the activities that significantly influence returns. Returns 

must vary and can be positive, negative or both. Control exists when the investor can use its 

power to affect the amount of its returns. There is also new guidance on participating and 

protective rights and on agent/principal relationships. The adoption of this new standard in the 

current period has not had any impact on the composition of the Group. 

AASB 11 introduces a principles based approach to accounting for joint arrangements. As the 

Group is not a party to any joint arrangements, the adoption of this new standard in the current 

period has not had any impact on the Group’s financial report. 

AASB 12 sets out the required disclosures for entities reporting under the two new standards, 

AASB 10 and AASB 11, and replaces the disclosure requirements currently found in AASB 127 

and AASB 128. Application of this standard by the Group has not affected any of the amounts 

recognised or disclosures made within the financial statements in relation to the group’s 

investments. 

Revised AASB 119 Employee Benefits and AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian 

Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011)  includes changed criteria for 

accounting for employee benefits as “short-term employee benefits”, which requires any leave 

provisions not expected to be settled within twelve months to be discounted the present value. 

The adoption of this new standard in the current period has not had a material impact upon the 

Group’s financial report. 

(b) New accounting standards not yet adopted 

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not 

mandatory for 31 December 2013 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the 

group. The group’s assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations is set 

out below: 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments, AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 

arising from AASB 9, AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 

from AASB 9 (December 2010) and AASB 2012-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards – Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures (effective from 1 

January 2015) 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments addresses the classification, measurement and derecognition of 

financial assets and financial liabilities. These standards are not mandatorily applicable until 1 

January 2015 but are available for early adoption. The Group has no plans to early adopt these 

standards. 

The adoption of AASB 9 is not expected to have a material impact upon the Group’s financial 

assets and financial liabilities, as the new requirements are primarily related to assets and 

liabilities that are measured at fair value, and more complex financial instruments. 

5. Determination of fair values 

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair 

value, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.  Fair values have been 

determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the guidelines set out in 

AASB 13.  When applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair 

values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability. 
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(i) Property, plant and equipment 

The fair value of property, plant and equipment recognised as a result of a business 

combination is the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of 

acquisition between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after 

proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably. The fair value of items of 

plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings is based on the market approach and cost approaches 

using quoted market prices for similar items when available and replacement cost when 

appropriate. Depreciated replacement cost estimates reflect adjustments for physical 

deterioration as well as functional and economic obsolescence.  

The early adoption of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement has resulted in the fair value being 

applied for property, plant and equipment acquired from business combinations, however this 

did not impact the financial statements. 

(ii) Intangible assets 

The fair value of gaming licenses acquired in a business combination is based on the 

comparative market value approach.   

The fair value of other intangible assets is based on the discounted cash flows expected to be 

derived from the use and eventual sale of the assets. 

(iii) Inventories 

The fair value of inventories acquired in a business combination is determined based on its 

estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion 

and sale, and a reasonable profit margin based on the effort required to complete and sell the 

inventories. 

(iv) Trade and other receivables 

The fair value of trade and other receivables acquired in a business combination, is estimated 

as the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the date 

of acquisition. 

(v) Non-derivative financial liabilities 

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated based on the present 

value of future principal and interest cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the 

reporting date.  In respect of the liability component of convertible notes, the market rate of 

interest is determined by reference to similar liabilities that do not have a conversion option.  

For finance leases the market rate of interest is determined by reference to similar lease 

agreements. 

 

 

 



 

Page 39 

 

 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

6. Ongoing operations  

 

At 31 December 2013, the Group was in a net current liability position of $7,953,677 primarily due to 

the bank bill facility of $32,309,101 being classified as current due to a breach of covenants. 

 

The Group’s ongoing operations, and its ability to meet its repayment obligations with existing creditors 

and lenders, are dependent on a number of factors including: 

 Achieving sufficient net cash flows to enable its obligations to be met; 

 The restructure transactions approved by shareholders on 19 December 2013 proceeding as 
planned in 2014; and 

 Successfully renegotiating the financing facilities. 
 

The Group’s solvency is dependent on a number of factors and, importantly, the ability to earn sufficient 

profits and achieve positive net cash flows. The directors believe this will occur in 2014 on the basis 

that 2013 included a number of significant non-recurring expenses, specifically in respect of the 

divestment of the construction division and non-core assets. 

The directors are of the opinion that the Group is a going concern and will be able to pay its debts as 

and when they become due and payable provided lenders and creditors continue to provide support as 

noted above. 

The parent entity’s ongoing operations are also dependent on the factors noted above, and its 

controlled entities providing sufficient funds to allow the parent entity to meet its debts as and when 

they fall due. 

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which assumes that the parent 

entity and Group will realise their assets and extinguish their liabilities in the normal course of business. 

Ongoing operations are dependent upon the matters described above. Should these not occur, there is 

significant uncertainty whether the parent entity and Group will be able to continue as going concerns 

and whether they will realise their assets and settle their liabilities and commitments in the normal 

course of business at the amounts stated in the financial report. No adjustments have been made to 

the financial report relating to the recoverability and classification of the asset carrying amounts or the 

amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the parent entity and Group not 

continue as going concerns. 

 

7. Discontinued Operations 

 

(a) Description 

On 31 March 2013 the construction subsidiaries of the Group, being Village National Constructions Pty 

Ltd and Kyronn Pty Ltd were divested. The companies were not a discontinued operation or classified as 

held for sale as at 31 December 2013 although the comparative information in the statement of 

comprehensive income has been re-presented to show the net result of the discontinued operation 

separately from continuing operations. 
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Further to this, on 27 November 2013 share sale agreements were entered into to divest the following 

subsidiaries:  

 Village National Banana Operations Pty Ltd 

 Village National Banana Properties Pty Ltd 

 Village National Tara Operations Pty Ltd 

 Village National Tara Pty Ltd 

 Village National Moura Operations Pty Ltd 

 Village National Moura Pty Ltd 

 Village National Magnetic Operations Pty Ltd 

 Village National Magnetic Properties Pty Ltd 

The companies were classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2013 as it is highly probable the 

transactions will be settled in 2014. The comparative information in the statement of comprehensive 

income has been re-presented to show the discontinued operation separately from continuing 

operations of the Group. The statement of financial position for the year ended 31 December 2013 

shows all assets and liabilities relating to these subsidiaries as held for sale.  

 

(b) Financial performance and cash flow information 

The financial performance and cash flow information presented are for the period 1 January 2013 to 31 

December 2013. The comparative information is for the period 14 September 2011 to 31 December 

2012. 

 
2013 

$ 

 2012                     

$ 

Revenue 11,267,836  21,565,970 

Expenses (9,739,154)  (20,102,474) 

Profit before income tax 1,528,682  1,463,496 

Income tax (expense)/benefit  (458,828)  (778,730) 

Profit/(loss) after income tax of discontinued operation 1,069,854  684,766 

Gain/(loss) on sale of operation before income tax (1,332,332)  - 

Income tax (expense)/benefit  -  - 

Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (262,478)  684,766 
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 2013 

$ 

 2012                     

$ 

Net cash flows from operating activities (1,127,383)  949,370 

Net cash flows from investing activities* 2,976,281  (20,685,630) 

Net cash flows from financing activities 91,275  52,609 

Net movement in cash from discontinued operations 1,940,173  (27,428,214) 

 

* 2013 includes an inflow of $2,976,281 from the sale of Village National Constructions Pty Ltd and 

Kyronn Pty Ltd operation net of cash disposed. 

* 2012 includes an outflow of $836,000 from the purchase of Kyronn Pty Ltd net of cash acquired. 

* 2012 includes an outflow of $19,849,630 from the acquisition of the Moura, Tara, Banana and 

Townsville operations net of cash acquired. 

 

(c) Details of sale of operations 

 

 
   

Consideration received or receivable:    

Cash 

Cancellation of shares in Village National Holdings Limited 

643,000 

2,750,000 

 - 

- 

Total disposal consideration 3,393,000  - 

     

Carrying amount of net assets sold 4,725,332  - 

Gain/(loss) on disposal before income tax (1,332,332)  - 

Income tax (expense)/benefit -  - 

Gain/(loss) on disposal after income tax (1,332,332)  - 
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(d) Carry amount of assets and liabilities disposed or classified as held for sale 

The carrying amount of assets and liabilities as at the date of sale of Village National Constructions Pty 

Ltd and Kyronn Pty Ltd (31 March 2013) were: 

 

 

 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Cash and cash equivalents  617  - 

Trade and other receivables  3,866,903  - 

Property, plant and equipment 

Inventories 

Intangible assets 

Other assets 

707,113 

294,620 

3,403,419 

15,886 

 - 

- 

- 

- 

Total assets 8,288,558  - 

 

Trade and other payables 1,108,157  - 

Provision for employee benefits 

Bank overdraft 

Lease liabilities  

74,199 

2,333,782 

47,088 

 - 

- 

- 

Total liabilities 3,563,226  - 

 

Net assets 4,725,332  - 
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The carry amount of the assets and liabilities classified as held for sale in the statement of financial 

position are as follows: 

 

 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Cash and cash equivalents  193,577  - 

Trade and other receivables  27,015  - 

Property, plant and equipment 

Intangible assets 

Inventories 

Deferred tax assets 

Other assets 

21,544,622 

170,044 

197,271 

7,722 

154,208 

 - 

- 

- 

- 

- 

Total assets 22,294,459  - 

 

Trade and other payables 340,856  - 

Provisions 

Other liabilities 

22,795 

23,552 

 - 

- 

Total liabilities 387,203  - 

 

Net assets 21,907,256  - 

 

As the carrying value of the assets and liabilities classified as held for sale have been determined to be  

approximate to the fair value less costs to sell no remeasurement has been included in the financial 

statements.   
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8. Revenue  

 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Accommodation services 6,745,968  4,559,391 

 

9. Employee benefits expense 

 

Wages and salaries 2,385,150  1,228,247 

Superannuation contributions 

Share-based payments expense 

203,619 

763,720 

 179,010 

688,960 

 3,352,489  2,096,217 

 

10. Finance income and finance costs 

 

Recognised in profit or loss 

 

    

Interest income  20,876  16,821 

    

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost  (2,396,820)   (1,638,382) 

    

Amount of borrowing costs capitalised in the year / period -  384,118 

Amount of borrowing costs amortised during the year / period (321,109)  (78,009) 
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11. Operating segments 

Following the divestment of the construction division, the Group has only one reportable segment being 

accommodation services. 

During the year ended 31 December 2013 the group divested its construction operations and entered 

agreements to sell a number of other accommodation subsidiaries as disclosed above. The results of 

the construction segment up to the period of disposal and accommodation subsidiaries classified as 

discontinued operations are presented in Note 7 and are separately disclosed on the statement of 

comprehensive income as discontinued operations. 

Operating segments have been determined based on the analysis provided in the reports reviewed by 

the Board in assessing performance and determining strategy.  During the year there were no 

intersegment revenues.  

 

Operating segments 

31 December 2013 

Accommodation 

services 

$ 

Unallocated 

$ 

Total 

$ 

Segment revenue     

Revenues – external 6,745,968 - 6,745,968  

Finance income - 

 

20,876 

                          

20,876  

Segment revenues 6,745,968 20,876 6,766,844 

Segment expenses (4,055,491) (7,963,139) (12,018,630) 

Net profit/(loss) before tax 2,690,477 (7,942,263) (5,251,786) 

Segment assets 66,249,300 5,654,647 71,903,947 

Segment liabilities 856,448 34,078,980 34,935,428 

  

Operating segments 

31 December 2012 

Accommodation 

services 

$ 

Unallocated 

$ 

Total 

$ 

Segment revenue     

Revenues – external 4,559,391 - 4,559,391  

Finance income - 

 

16,821 

                          

16,821  

Segment revenues 4,559,391 16,821 4,576,212 

Segment expenses (4,686,102) (5,818,521) (10,504,623) 

Net profit/(loss) before tax (126,711) (5,801,700) (5,928,411) 

Segment assets 63,923,487 17,034,795 80,958,282 

Segment liabilities 542,962 39,484,927 40,027,889 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

Segment expenses – unallocated 

 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Share based payment expense  763,720  688,960 

Professional and legal fees 366,061  2,555,277 

Impairment of assets 2,539,203  - 

Employee benefits 1,242,528  666,917 

Interest expense 2,384,527  1,632,336 

Depreciation and amortisation  38,848  11,407 

Other 628,252  263,624 

 7,963,139  5,818,521 

 

 

Segment assets – other 

The amount of other segment assets comprises the following: 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 632,323  1,837,019 

Other receivables 714  190,673 

Other assets 2,750,000  - 

Deposits paid 

Property plant and equipment 

697,210 

135,578 

 2,274,380 

126,829 

Prepayments 87,847  306,109 

Deferred tax assets 1,350,975  945,086 

Construction segment now divested -  11,354,699 

Total 5,654,647  17,034,795 

 

12. Income tax expense  

(a) Income tax expense 
 

Current tax expense / (benefit) (201,910)  (406,074) 

Deferred tax expense / (benefit) (587,100)  (354,593) 

Total income tax expense / (benefit) (789,010)  (760,667) 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

 

(b) Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable 

 

 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Loss from continuing operations before income tax expense (5,251,786)  (5,928,411) 

    

Prima facie tax benefit at the Australian tax rate of 30% (1,575,536)  (1,778,523) 

 

Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (taxable) in calculating taxable income: 

 

Share-based payments 229,116  206,688 

Acquisition costs 240,024  801,641 

Impairment of assets 322,761  - 

Other (5,375)  9,527 

Income tax benefit (789,010)  (760,667) 

 

(c) Amounts recognised directly in equity 

Aggregate current and deferred tax arising in the reporting period and not recognised in net profit or 

loss or other comprehensive income but directly debited or credited to equity: 

 

Current tax – credited directly to equity -  - 

Net deferred tax –credited directly to equity -  (529,261) 

Total income tax benefit -  (529,261) 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

13. Trade and other receivables 

 Note 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Trade receivables  325,706  3,588,112 

Provision for impairment of receivables (a)  -  (63,482) 

  325,706  3,524,630 

Other receivables   714  501,992 

Receivable from related parties 32 -  721,275 

  326,420  4,747,897 

  

(a) Impaired trade receivables  

As at 31 December 2013 no current trade receivables of the group were impaired (2012: $63,482). 

The movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is as follows: 

 

Opening balance 63,482  - 

Provision for impairment recognised during the year -  63,482 

Receivables written off as uncollectable (59,464)  - 

Reversal of provision (4,018)  - 

As at 31 December  -  63,482 

 

14. Inventories 

Construction – work in progress  -  202,362 

Stock on hand 24,587  211,219 

 24,587  413,581 

 

15. Other assets 

Other deposits/bonds 

Deposit* 

Deferred consideration – Kyronn disposal* 

Prepayments 

- 

697,210 

2,750,000 

222,844 

 40,860 

- 

- 

278,527 

 3,670,054  319,387 

*Amounts to be settled through cancellation of shares at fair value    
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

16. Property, plant and equipment 

Land and Building 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Freehold land  28,755,973  43,262,232 

    

Buildings 11,313,388  14,772,301 

Less accumulated depreciation (510,015)  (284,416) 

 10,803,373  14,487,885 

Capital works in progress 1,581,090  5,333,147 

Total land and buildings           41,140,436  63,083,264 

Plant and Equipment    

Motor vehicles  67,338   160,776  

Less accumulated depreciation (22,021)  (24,763) 

 45,317   136,013  

    

Motor vehicles - leased -   68,474  

Less accumulated depreciation -  (9,911) 

 -   58,563  

    

Office equipment 118,900   233,593  

Less accumulated depreciation (33,459)  (30,528) 

 85,441   203,065  

  

Furniture and fittings 

 

2,913,421  

  

3,563,910  

Less accumulated depreciation (677,634)  (365,505) 

 2,235,787   3,198,405  

Total plant and equipment           2,366,545  3,596,046 

Total property, plant and equipment 43,506,981  66,679,310 

 



 

  

Page 50 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

31 December 2013 

 

Cost  

 Note Land and 

buildings 

Motor 

vehicles 

Motor 

vehicles 
- leased 

Office 

equipment 

Furniture & 

fittings 

Buildings 

under 
construction 

Total 

  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Balance at 1 

January 2013 

 58,034,533 160,776 68,474 233,593 3,563,910 5,333,147 67,394,433 

Additions  1,695,397 11,614 - 54,445 729,528 (579,602) 1,911,382 

Disposals  - (78,581) (68,474) (119,222) (733,457) (1,462,515) (2,462,249) 

Reclassified 

as held for 
sale 

 

 

(19,660,569) 

 

(26,471) 

 

- 

 

(49,916) 

 

(646,560) 

 

(1,709,940) 

 

(22,093,456) 

Acquisitions   - - - - - - - 

Balance at 31 
December 

2013 

 40,069,361 67,338 - 118,900  2,913,421 1,581,090 44,750,110 

 

Depreciation and impairment loss 

  Land and 

buildings 

Motor 

vehicles 

Motor 

vehicles - 
leased 

Office 

equipment 

Furniture & 

fittings 

Assets under 

construction 

Total 

  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Balance at 1 

January 2013 

 (284,416) (24,763) (9,911) (30,528) (365,505) - (715,123) 

Depreciation for  

the period 

 (628,848) (25,858) (3,000) (43,468) (668,785) - (1,369,959) 

Depreciation 

associated with 

disposed assets 

 - 21,918 12,911 27,364 233,926 - 296,119 

Reclassified as 

held for sale 

 403,249 6,682 - 13,173 122,730 - 545,834 

Balance at 31 

December 2013 

 (510,015) (22,021) - (33,459) (677,634) - (1,243,129) 

         

Carrying 

amounts 

 39,559,346 45,317 - 85,441  2,235,787 1,581,090 43,506,981 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

31 December 2012 

During the previous financial period, freehold land and buildings were acquired at various dates as part 

of business combinations.  At the acquisition date, reference was made to the fair value of assets, 

including independent property valuations by registered valuers based on fair market value from 

comparable sales. 

Motor vehicles include three vehicles subject to hire purchase agreements with a cost of $68,474.   

Cost 

 Note Land and 

buildings 

Motor 

vehicles 

Motor 

vehicles 
- leased 

Office 

equipment 

Furniture & 

fittings 

Buildings 

under 
construction 

Total 

  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Balance at 14 

September 
2011 

 - - - - - - - 

Additions  1,449,318 76,676 68,474 155,921 1,235,897 5,333,147 8,319,433 

Disposals  - - - - - - - 

Reclassified 
as held for 

sale 

 
 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

 

- 

Acquisitions   56,585,215 84,100 - 77,672 2,328,013 - 59,075,000 

Balance at 31 
December 

2012 

 58,034,533 160,776 68,474 233,593  3,563,910 5,333,147 67,394,433 

 

Depreciation and impairment loss 

  Land and 
buildings 

Motor 
vehicles 

Motor 
vehicles - 

leased 

Office 
equipment 

Furniture & 
fittings 

Assets under 
construction 

Total 

  $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Balance at 14 
September 

2011 

 - - - - - - - 

Depreciation for  

the period 

 (284,416) (24,763) (9,911) (30,528) (365,505) - (715,123) 

Reclassified as 

held for sale 

 - - - - - - - 

Balance at 31 

December 2012 

 (284,416) (24,763) (9,911) (30,528) (365,505) - (715,123) 

         

Carrying 

amounts 

 57,750,117 136,013 58,563 203,065  3,198,405 5,333,147 66,679,310 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

17. Intangible assets 

 

 

 

31 December 2013 

 Computer 

software/other 

Gaming 

licences 

Goodwill Total 

 $ $ $ $ 

Cost     

Balance at 1 January 2013 15,174 160,000 3,403,419 3,578,593 

Acquisitions  - - - - 

Disposals  - - (3,403,419) (3,403,419) 

Reclassified as held for sale (15,174) (160,000) - (175,174) 

Additions 1,200  - - 1,200  

Balance at 31 December 2013 1,200  - - 1,200 

Amortisation and impairment losses     

Balance at 1 January 2013 (2,095) - - (2,095) 

Amortisation (3,035) - - (3,035) 

Reclassified as held for sale 5,130 - - 5,130 

Balance at 31 December 2013 - - - - 

     

Carrying amounts     

Balance at 31 December 2013 1,200 - - 1,200 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

 

31 December 2012 

 Computer 

software/other 

Gaming 

licences 

Goodwill Total 

 $ $ $ $ 

Cost     

Balance at 14 September 2011 - - - - 

Acquisitions  - 160,000 3,403,419 3,563,419 

Disposals - - - - 

Reclassified as held for sale - - - - 

Additions 15,174  - - 15,174  

Balance at 31 December 2012 15,174  160,000 3,403,419 3,578,593 

Amortisation and impairment losses     

Balance at 14 September 2011 - - - - 

Amortisation (2,095) - - (2,095) 

Reclassified as held for sale - - - - 

Balance at 31 December 2012 (2,095) - - (2,095) 

     

Carrying amounts     

Balance at 31 December 2012 13,079 160,000 3,403,419 3,576,498 

 

The Group’s gaming licences are deemed to have an indefinite useful life as the licenses do not expire. 

 

Impairment testing for cash-generating units (‘CGU’) containing goodwill and indefinite life intangible 

assets 

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill and intangible assets acquired are allocated to the 

Group’s operating divisions. As at 31 December 2013, the group no longer held any goodwill due to the 
divestment of the construction division on 31 March 2013. The other intangible assets of the group 

relating to the accommodation CGU were also classified as held for sale as at 31 December 2013.  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

18. Deferred tax assets  

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 

 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Doubtful debts -  19,045 

Property plant and equipment -  20,626 

Borrowing costs 307,839  283,525 

Employee benefits 45,198  59,222 

Accrued expenses 27,355  45,284 

Leases -  3,123 

Equity raising costs 365,657  514,261 

Other 22,197  - 

Unused tax losses 608,069  - 

Total deferred tax asset 1,376,315  945,086 

 

Opening balance 945,086  - 

Movement (charged) credited to profit and loss  438,951  415,825 

Amounts reclassified as held for sale (7,722)  - 

Amounts credited to equity  -  529,261 

As at 31 December  1,376,315  945,086 

 

19. Other non-current assets 

Deposits paid for acquisitions -  1,773,080 

Other deposits 37,700  - 

Prepayments  -  172,691 

 37,700  1,945,771 

 

20. Trade and other payables 

Trade creditors 453,100  1,255,925 

Other payables 389,420  524,882 

 842,520  1,780,807 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

21. Borrowings 

The carrying amount and fair value of borrowings at balance date are: 

 Note 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Current     

Bank overdraft  -  2,104,650 

Hire purchase liabilities - secured  -  19,663 

Commercial bill facility – secured  32,309,101  8,088,140 

Related party loans 32 800,000  - 

Insurance premium funding  91,081  - 

  33,200,182  10,212,453 

     

Non-current     

Hire purchase liabilities – secured   -  32,946 

Commercial bill facility – secured   -  27,317,131 

  -  27,350,077 

  

For information about the Group exposure to interest rate risk see Note 25. 

This note provides information about the contractual terms of the Group’s borrowings, which are 

measured at amortised cost.  The finance facility comprises two commercial bill facilities: 

   

 Bill Facility 1 

 

Bill Facility 2 

Original Facility amount 32,245,551 3,159,720 

Balance at 31 December 2013 29,781,341 2,527,760 

Repayments 1,232,105 / qtr 90,280 / mth 

Residual 

Maturity date  

18,692,396 

1 Aug 2015 

2,166,640 

9 Nov 2013 

The commercial bill facilities are secured by registered charges over the assets and undertakings of all 

Group entities. Commercial bill facility amounts owing are disclosed in the statement of financial 

position net of borrowing costs. 

Interest is currently charged at 3.79% plus BBSY per annum on each bank facility.  
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

The residual of the second bill facility was due on 9 November 2013. As at the date of this report the 

facility is yet to be repaid and is part of wider debt facility renegotiations.  

The Group did not meet all terms as required under the covenants of its lending facilities during the 

period and therefore is in breach of its commercial bill facility agreements as 31 December 2013 and 

continues to be in breach as at the date of this report. For this reason the full carrying amount of the 

facilities is classified as current as at 31 December 2013. The residual of the second bill facility was 

due on 9 November 2013. As at the date of this report the facility is yet to be repaid. The Group is 

currently renegotiating a renewal of these facilities and actively pursuing refinancing opportunities with 

other financial institutions.   

 

22. Provisions 

 

 

Current  

2013 

$ 

 

 2012 

$ 

Decommissioning  

Employee benefits 

23,480 

133,255 

 - 

174,595 

 156,735  174,595 

Non-current    

Employee benefits -  22,813 

 

23. Other liabilities 

Deposits held 10,045   77,520  

Income in advance -   570  

 10,045  78,090 

24. Deferred tax liabilities 

The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to: 

Prepayments -  241 

Property plant and equipment -  18,197 

Leases -  9,284 

Total deferred tax liability -  27,722 

 

Opening balance 

Movement (charged) credited to profit and loss  

27,722 

(27,722) 

 

 

- 

27,722 

As at 31 December  -  27,722 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

25. Financial instruments 

Financial risk management  

Overview 

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 

 credit risk 

 liquidity risk 

 market risk – interest rate risk 

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s 

objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Group’s management of 

capital.   

Risk Management framework 

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk 

management framework.  Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks 

faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to  

limits.  These policies are informally reviewed from time to time to reflect changes in market conditions 

and the Group’s activities. 

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risks and interest 

rate risk.  The summaries below present information about the Group’s exposure to each of these risks, 

their objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, the management of capital 

and financial instruments. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial 

instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables 

from customers and investment securities.   

The carrying amount of the following assets represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in 

relation to financial assets: 

 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Cash and cash equivalents 666,231  2,330,752 

Trade and other receivables 351,561  4,747,897 

 1,017,792  7,078,649 

The Group mitigates credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and security deposits by dealing with 

regulated banks in Australia.  Credit risk on trade and other receivables is considered low as revenue is 

derived from a large number of customers and generally high worth entities operating within the mining 

and resources sector. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

 Impairment loss 

The ageing of the Group’s trade and other receivables is as follows: 

 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Not past due 249,478  2,816,681 

Amounts past due not considered impaired    

Past due 31-60 days 76,942  710,403 

Past due 61 – 90 days -  480,022 

Past due more than 90 days -  804,273 

 326,420  4,811,379 

 

Refer to note 13 in relation to the impairment of group trade receivables. 

 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.  

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have 

sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without 

incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation. 

 

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity management rests with the Board of Directors. The Group manages 

liquidity risk by maintaining adequate funding and monitoring of future rolling cash flow forecasts of its  

operations, which reflect management’s expectations of expected settlement of financial assets and 

liabilities. 

The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including estimated interest 

payments: 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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31 Dec 2013 Carrying amount Contractual cash 

flow 

Less than 1 year Between  

1 and 5 years 

More than  

5 years 

 $ $ $ $ $ 

Trade and 

other 

payables 

842,520 842,520 842,520 - - 

Other 

liabilities 
101,126 101,126 101,126   

Bank 

overdraft 
- - - - - 

Related party 

loans 
800,000 800,000 800,000 - - 

Finance 

leases 
- - - - - 

Commercial 

Bills 
32,309,101 34,845,436 11,592,695 23,252,741 - 

 34,052,747 36,589,082 13,336,341 23,252,741 - 

 

 

31 Dec 2012 Carrying amount Contractual cash 

flow 

Less than 1 year Between  

1 and 5 years 

More than  

5 years 

 $ $ $ $ $ 

Trade and 

other 

payables 

1,780,807 1,780,807 1,780,807 - - 

Other 

liabilities 
78,090 78,090 78,090   

Bank 

overdraft 
2,104,650 2,104,650 2,104,650 - - 

Related party 

loans 
- - - - - 

Finance 

leases 
52,609 56,868 22,084 34,784 - 

Commercial 

Bills 
35,405,271 39,882,647 10,167,301 29,715,346 - 

 39,421,427 43,903,062 14,152,932 29,750,130 - 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

Interest rate risk 

The Group’s statement of comprehensive income is affected by changes in interest rates due to the 

impact of such changes on interest income and expenses from cash and cash equivalents and 

borrowings. 

At balance date, the Group had the following financial assets and liabilities exposed to variable interest 

rate risk: 

 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 

      

666,231 

       

2,330,752 

Overdraft facility -   (2,104,650) 

Commercial bill facility (32,309,101)  (35,405,271) 

Total  (31,642,870)  (35,179,169) 

Sensitivity analysis 

A change of 50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) 

equity and loss for the period by the amount shown below.  This analysis assumes that all other 

variables remain constant.   

 

Impact on profit/(loss) before tax for the period  152,214  227,460 

 

Capital management 

The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market 

confidence and to sustain future development of the business.  Capital consists of ordinary shares, 

retained earnings and controlling interests of the Group.  The Board of Directors monitors the return on 

capital as well as the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders.  

The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with higher 

levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position.  The Board 

ensures costs are not incurred in excess of available funds.   

The Group is exposed to the following externally imposed capital requirements: 

Consolidated equity divided by consolidated assets must exceed 47.5% for the year ended 31 

December 2013 and 50% for each ensuing year; 

Dividends are restricted to 40% of Consolidated Net Profit After Tax plus depreciation, less cash 

requirements for debt amortisation for the Group; 

Consolidated debt servicing ratio is to be greater than 1.45 times for the year ended 31 December 

2013 and 1.55 times for the year ended 31 December 2014. 
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED 

Net fair values of financial assets and liabilities 

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities of the Group, for the period ended 31 December 

approximate their net fair values, given the short time frames to maturity and or variables interest rates. 

 

26. Capital and reserves 

Dividends 

There were no dividends paid or declared during the period ended 31 December 2013 (2012: nil). 

Fully paid ordinary shares 

 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Paid up capital 44,724,071    44,724,411 

Number of fully paid ordinary shares 100,000,000  100,000,000 

 

There was movement during the period of $340 in relation to an adjustment to equity raising costs.  

Movement for the previous period is as follows: 

  Date Issue Price 
  

Opening Balance   - -   

Shares issued to acquire Village 
National Pty Ltd* 

May 2012 $0.10 - $0.80 50,000,000 6,655,000 

Shares issued related to business 
combination 

Dec 2011 $0.80 3,750,000 3,000,000 

Shares issued related to business 
combination 

Feb 2012 $0.80 500,000 400,000 

Shares issued related to business 
combination 

Aug 2012 $0.80 2,500,000 2,000,000 

Shares issued Jun-Sep 2012 $0.80 30,750,000 24,568,080 

Shares issued related to converting 
note 

Jun 2012 $0.80 12,500,000 10,000,000 

Cost of equity issued (net of tax 
benefit) 

   (1,898,669) 

   100,000,000 44,724,411 

*On 31 May 2012 the Company acquired 100% of the issued shares of Village National Pty Ltd and its 

subsidiaries.  The transaction has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition, as the control of the 

Company upon completion of the acquisition rested with the shareholders of Village National Pty Ltd. 

This has had the effect of accounting and reporting for the transaction as if Village National Pty Ltd 

acquired the Company and ignores the legal form of the transaction.   
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
CONTINUED  

Ordinary shares 

All issued shares are fully paid.  All shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual assets. 

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time, and are 

entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.  In respect of the Company’s shares that are 

held by the Group, all rights are suspended until those shares are reissued. 

Share based payment reserve 

The issue of Company options results in a credit to the option premium reserve representing the fair 

value of the options granted.  The exercise of Company options results in a debit to the option premium 

reserve.  There were no options exercised during the period ended 31 December 2013 (2012: nil). 

  2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Opening reserve 688,960  - 

Share based payments expense 763,720  688,960 

Closing reserve 1,452,680  688,960 

27. Earnings per share 

Loss for the period attributable to equity holders of the Group 

Loss for the period attributable to equity holders of the Group – from 

continuing operations 

(4,725,254) 

(4,462,776) 

 

 

 (4,482,978) 

(5,167,744) 

 Number   Number 

Weighted average number of shares at the end of the period 100,000,000   68,686,691 

Basic and diluted loss per share (cents)  (4.72)   (6.53) 

Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing operations (cents) (4.46)   (7.52) 

 

A number of potential ordinary share transactions have been approved by shareholders and it is highly 

probably that they will occur in 2014. If these transactions occurred before the end of the reporting 

period the number of shares on issue would have been 59,485,992 and the loss per share from 

continuing operations would have been 7.66 cents. 

28. Current Assets – cash and equivalents 

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents 666,231  2,330,752 

Cash and cash equivalents included in assets held for sale 193,577  - 

Bank overdraft  -  (2,104,650) 

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 859,808  226,102 

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and a sensitivity analysis for financial assets and liabilities 

are disclosed in note 25. 
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(b) Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities 

 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Loss for the period (4,725,254)  (4,482,978) 

    

Non-cash items    

Depreciation & amortisation 1,372,994  717,218 

Share based payment expense 763,720  688,960 

Issue of equity for reimbursement of legal, professional and travel costs -  990,000 

Borrowing costs deferred -  (306,109) 

Amortisation of borrowing costs 321,109  - 

Fair value adjustments and impairment 2,539,203  - 

Loss on sale of subsidiary 1,332,332  - 

Gain on sale of fixed assets (18,696)  - 

Change in assets and liabilities    

Trade and other receivables (740,565)  (2,945,622) 

Inventories (102,898)  (258,726) 

Prepayments and other assets 1,439,123  (185,969) 

Trade and other payables 580,793  1,056,219 

Provisions 32,840  185,529 

Other liabilities -  78,090 

Current tax liability (42,589)  189,622 

Deferred tax assets (466,673)  (388,103) 

Net cash used in operating activities 2,285,439  (4,661,869) 

 

(c) Converting notes and issued shares 

The statement of cash flow for the prior period includes as issued shares $10,000,000 represented by 

the converting note instrument which had the risks and rewards of ownership and accordingly has been 

treated as equity. 

 

(d) Non-cash investing and financing activities  

Payment for property plant and equipment through issuance of shares -  5,400,000 

Acquisition of plant and equipment by means of finance lease -  52,609 

Deposit for a property acquisition facilitated through issuance of shares -  (1,773,080) 
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29. Operating leases 

Leases as lessee 

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows: 

 2013 

$ 

  2012 

$ 

Less than one year 791,807   640,422 

Between one and five years 752,557   85,118 

More than five years -   - 

 1,544,364   725,540 

During the financial period $625,842 (2012: $162,400) was recognised as an expense in profit or loss 

in respect of operating leases.  

 

30. Capital commitments 

No capital commitments were entered into during the financial year ended 31 December 2013, which 

were yet to be settled at period end. 

 

31. Contingencies 

At period end, the Group has given the following bank guarantees: 

Rental premise  24,750  124,000 

Construction projects   -  422,680 

Total  24,750  546,680 

Based on the information available at the date of this report, the Directors consider it is probable that a 

future sacrifice of economic benefits will not be required in relation to these guarantees. 

 

32. Related parties and key management personnel compensation 

Key management personnel compensation  

Short-term employee benefits  831,561  790,768 

Post-employment benefits 65,296  37,839 

Long-term benefits -  - 

Termination benefits -  - 

Share based payments 342,891  342,325 

Total  1,239,748  1,170,932 
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Key management personnel and director transactions 

A number of key management persons, or their related parties, hold positions in other entities that 

result in them having control or joint control over the financial or operating policies of those entities. 

During the year ended 31 December 2013,  Armstrong Registry Services Pty Ltd, a company associated 

with Jennifer Hutson, provided company registry and other services to the group for which no fee was 

charged (2012: $624,120 plus GST).  Further to this in December 2013, Wellington Capital, a company 

also associated with Jennifer Hutson advanced $400,000 to the group in the form of an unsecured 

loan. No interest is charged on this loan and it is due for repayment by 31 March 2014. 

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group also entered into a share sale contract to divest a 

number of non-core assets to Wellington Villages Pty Ltd, a company also associated with Jennifer 

Hutson. Full details of this transaction are outlined in the Directors Report and Note 7.  

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Esplanade Property Fund, an entity associated with 

David Franklyn, advanced $400,000 to the group in the form of an unsecured loan. No interest is 

charged on this loan and it is due for repayment by 31 March 2014. 

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Fourmile Holdings Pty Ltd (‘FMH’), a company associated 

with Douglas Lomas, repaid a loan to the Group of $101,275. No further monies are owed to the Group 

from Douglas Lomas or his associated entities.   

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group divested Village National Constructions Pty Ltd 

and Kyronn Pty Ltd, to group of entities including companies associated with Gavin Boyle and Douglas 

Lomas.  The Group received total cash consideration of $653,000 plus the cancellation of 3,437,500 

shares in Village National Holdings Limited. During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group also 

entered into a share sale contract to divest a non-core asset to GBC Housing Pty Ltd, a company also 

associated with Gavin Boyle. Full details of this transaction are outlined in the Directors Report and 

Note 7.  

The Group also paid Gloverform Pty Ltd, a company associated with Gavin Boyle, a total of $75,000 

plus GST in construction consulting fees during the period (2012: $325,000 plus GST).  The $620,000 

loan outstanding from Gavin Boyle as at 31 December 2012 was removed from the group as part of the 
sale of Kyronn Pty Ltd. 

Loans to key management personnel and their related parties 

Details regarding loans outstanding at the reporting date from key management personnel and their 

related parties at any time in the reporting period, are as follows: 

 Balance at 31 

December 2012 

Balance at 

31 December 

2013 

Interest 

charged 

Highest 

balance in 

period 

 $ $ $ $ 

Gavin Boyle 

Douglas Lomas  

620,000 

101,275 

- 

- 

- 

- 

620,000 

101,275 

 721,275 - - 721,275 
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Loans from key management personnel and their related parties 

Details regarding loans outstanding at the reporting date to key management personnel and their 

related parties at any time in the reporting period, are as follows: 

 Balance at 31 

December 2012 

Balance at 

31 December 

2013 

Interest 

charged 

Highest 

balance in 

period 

 $ $ $ $ 

Jennifer Hutson 

David Franklyn  

- 

- 

400,000 

400,000 

- 

- 

400,000 

400,000 

 - 800,000 - 800,000 

 

Both loans are unsecured, interest free and repayable by 31 March 2014. 
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33. Group entities - Significant subsidiaries 

 

 Date of 

incorporation 

Country of 

incorporation 

Ownership 

interest 

2013 

Ownership 

interest 

2012 

Village National Pty Limited 14/09/2011 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Properties Pty Ltd 17/11/2011 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Operations Pty Ltd 17/11/2011 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Construction Pty Ltd 17/11/2011 Australia 0% 100% 

Kyronn Pty Ltd  18/03/2009 Australia 0% 100% 

Village National Moura Pty Ltd 16/09/2011 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Moura Operations Pty Ltd 16/09/2011 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Tara Pty Ltd 16/09/2011 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Tara Operations Pty Ltd 16/09/2011 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Emerald Properties Pty Ltd 18/01/2012 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Emerald Operations Pty Ltd 18/01/2012 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Banana Properties Pty Ltd 07/10/2011 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Banana Operations Pty Ltd 07/10/2011 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Coal Country Properties Pty Ltd 03/01/2012 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Coal Country Operations Pty 

Ltd 

03/01/2012 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Magnetic Properties Pty Ltd 03/01/2012 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Magnetic Operations Pty Ltd 03/01/2012 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Emerald North Pty Ltd 16/09/2011 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Pritchard Properties Pty Ltd 05/07/2012 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Pritchard Operations Pty Ltd 05/07/2012 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Smart Stay Properties Pty Ltd 05/07/2012 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Smart Stay Operations Pty Ltd 05/07/2012 Australia 100% 100% 

Village National Blackwater Properties Pty Ltd 30/08/2012 Australia 100% 100% 
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34. Share-based payment arrangements  

The Company has a share option program that entitles key management personnel, senior employees 

and consultants to be granted options in the entity. No new options were issued during the year ended 

31 December 2013.  

Movement in options Held at 1 Jan 

2013 

Granted Expired Held at 31 

Dec 2013 

Original Fair 

Value 

$ 

Series 1  7,500,000 - (2,499,998) 5,000,002 1,438,993 

Series 2  500,000 - (166,666) 333,334 88,677 

 8,000,000 - (2,666,664) 5,333,336 1,527,670 

The fair value of the employee share purchase plan is based on fair value of the employee share 

options and is measured using the Trinomial methodology.  Measurement inputs include share price on 

measurement date, exercise price of the instrument, expected volatility, weighted average expected life 

of the instruments, expected dividends, and the risk-free interest rate (based on government bonds). 

The value of the options issued during the period ended 31 December 2012 is expensed over the 

vesting period on a straight line basis. An amount of $763,720 was expensed during the period ended 

31 December 2013 (2012: $688,690). The remaining fair value of options to be expensed is $75,260. 

 

35. Auditors’ remuneration 

 2013 

$ 

 2012 

$ 

Audit services    

Auditors of the Group – Pitcher Partners:    

Review and audit of financial reports – June 

Audit of financial reports – December 

24,500 

55,000 

 65,000 

55,000 

    

Other auditors – non Pitcher Partner firms    

Queensland Building Services Authority review -  10,000 

 79,500  130,000 

Services other than statutory audit – Pitcher Partners:    

Other services    

Taxation services  

Prospectus and advisory related services  

37,800 

47,500 

 18,750 

- 

 85,300  18,750 
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36. Events subsequent to reporting date 

There has not arisen in the interval between the end of the financial period and the date of this report 

any item, any other transaction or event of a material and unusual nature likely, in the opinion of the 

directors of the Company, to affect significantly the operations of the Group, the results of those 

operations, or the state of affairs of the Group, in future financial years. 

 

37. Parent entity disclosures 

The parent entity of the Group is Village National Holdings Limited (legal form). Below are the financial 

results and position of the parent. 

 

 2013 

$ 

 2012* 

$ 

Result of the parent entity    

Profit / (loss) for the period after tax 7,597  122,767 

Other comprehensive income -  - 

Total comprehensive profit / (loss) 7,597  122,767 

    

Financial position    

Total current assets 577,461  3,463,435 

Total assets 80,039,072  79,193,441 

    

Total current liabilities 1,140,173  274,077 

Total liabilities 1,140,173  301,800 

Net assets 78,898,899  78,891,641 

    

Total equity of parent entity comprising of:    

Share capital 78,768,535  78,768,874 

Retained earnings 130,364  122,767 

Total equity 78,898,899  78,891,641 

*For the period from incorporation on 14 May 2012 to 31 December 2012 
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Parent entity contingencies 

The directors are of the opinion that provisions are not required in respect of these matters, as it is not 

probable that a future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required or the amount is not capable of 

reliable measurement. 

 

38. Deed of cross guarantee 

Pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) dated 13 August 1998, the wholly owned 

subsidiaries listed below are relieved from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, 

audit and lodgement of financial reports, and directors’ report. 

It is a condition of the Class Order that the Company and each of the subsidiaries enter into a Deed of 

Cross Guarantee.  The effect of the Deed is that the Company guarantees to each creditor payment in 

full of any debt in the event of winding up of any of the subsidiaries under certain provisions of the 

Corporations Act 2001.  If a winding up occurs under other provisions of the Act, the Company will only 

be liable in the event that after six months any creditor has not been paid in full.  The subsidiaries have 

also given similar guarantees in the event that the Company is wound up. 

The subsidiaries subject to the Deed are: 

Village National Pty Ltd 

Village National Properties Pty Ltd 

Village National Operations Pty Ltd 

Village National Moura Pty Ltd 

Village National Moura Operations Pty Ltd 

Village National Tara Pty Ltd 

Village National Tara Operations Pty Ltd 

Village National Emerald Properties Pty Ltd 

Village National Emerald Operations Pty Ltd 

Village National Banana Properties Pty Ltd 

 

Village National Banana Operations Pty Ltd 

Village National Coal Country Properties Pty Ltd 

Village National Coal Country Operations Pty Ltd 

Village National Magnetic Properties Pty Ltd 

Village National Magnetic Operations Pty Ltd 

Village National Pritchard Properties Pty Ltd 

Village National Pritchard Operations Pty Ltd 

Village National Smart Stay Properties Pty Ltd 

Village National Smart Stay Operations Pty Ltd 

Village National Emerald North Pty Ltd 

The financial statements of the closed Group approximate the consolidated financial statements. 

 

39. Business combination events 

No business combination events occurred during the period ended 31 December 2013. 

 

Acquisition-related costs 

The Group incurred $366,061 of professional fees and other costs during the year ended 31 December 

2013 (2012: $5,227,057 from continuing operations) relating to external legal fees, due diligence 

costs and acquisition costs.  These costs have been included in acquisition and other costs in the 

Group’s consolidated statement of comprehensive income.  
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DIRECTOR’S DECLARATION 

1. In the opinion of the directors of Village National Holdings Limited (‘the Company’): 

(a) the consolidated financial statements and notes that are set out on pages 20 to 70 are 

in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including: 

(i) giving a true and fair view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December 

2013 and of its performance, for the financial period ended on that date; and 

(ii) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations 

Regulations 2001; and 

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as 

  and when they become due and payable. 

2. There are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company and the group entities identified in 
note 38 will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become 

subject to by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee between the Company and those group 

entities pursuant to ASIC Class Order 98/1418. 

3. The directors draw attention to note 2(a) to the consolidated financial statements, which 

includes a statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards. 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the directors: 

 

Jennifer Hutson 

Chairperson 

Brisbane, Queensland 

25 March 2014 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT 

Village National Holdings Limited (the Company) and the Board are committed to achieving and 

demonstrating the highest standards of corporate governance.  The Board continues to review the 

framework and practices to ensure they meet the interests of shareholders.  The Company and its 

controlled entities together are referred to as the Group in this statement. 

A description of the Group’s main corporate governance practices is set out below.   

 

Principle 1: Lay solid foundations for management and oversight 

The relationship between the Board and senior management is critical to the Group’s long-term 

success.  The directors are responsible to the shareholders for the performance of the Group in both 

the short and the longer term and seek to balance sometimes competing objectives in the best 

interests of the Group as a whole.  Their focus is to enhance the interests of shareholders and other key 

stakeholders and to ensure the Group is properly managed. 

The responsibilities of the Board include: 

 providing strategic guidance to the Group including contributing to the development of and 
approving the corporate strategy; 

 reviewing and approving business plans, the annual budget and financial plans including 
available resources and major capital expenditure initiatives; 

 overseeing and monitoring: 

 organisational performance and the achievement of the Group’s strategic goals and objectives; 

 compliance with the company’s Code of Conduct; and 

 progress of major capital expenditures and other significant corporate projects including any 
acquisitions or divestments; 

 monitoring financial performance including approval of the annual and half year financial 
reports and liaison with the Group’s auditors; 

 appointment, performance assessment and, if necessary, removal of key executives; 

 ratifying the appointment and/or removal and contributing to the performance assessment for 
the members of the senior management team including the CFO and the Company Secretary; 

 ensuring there are effective management processes in place and approving major corporate 
initiatives; 

 enhancing and protecting the reputation of the organisation; 

 overseeing the operation of the Group’s system for compliance and risk management reporting 
to shareholders; and 

 ensuring appropriate resources are available to senior management. 

The terms and conditions of the appointment and retirement of directors are set out in a letter of 

appointment. 

Day-to-day management of the Group’s affairs and the implementation of the corporate strategy and 

policy initiatives are formally delegated by the Board to the Managing Director and senior executives.  

These delegations are reviewed on an annual basis. 

The Group has developed a process for annual appraisal of senior executives measuring performance 

in ten areas, including contribution to the overall success of the business.  The appraisal is designed to 

measure success in achieving objectives set for the past twelve months and to set objectives for the  
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ensuing twelve months.  Succession planning is also built into the appraisal process to encourage 

development of future leaders within the Group. 

The Group is due to undertake performance evaluations for the management team and senior 

executives by 30 June 2014. 

 

Principle 2: Structure the board to add value 

The Board operates in accordance with the broad principles set out below: 

Board composition 

The charter states: 

(a) the Board is to be comprised of both executive and non-executive directors.  

Non-executive directors bring perspective to the Board’s consideration of strategic, risk 

and performance matters and are best placed to exercise independent judgement and 

review and constructively challenge the performance of management; 

(b) in recognition of the importance of independent views and the Board’s role in 

supervising the activities of management, the Chairperson must be an independent 

non-executive director, half of the Board must be independent of management and all 

directors are required to bring independent judgement to bear in their Board decision 

making;  

(c) the Chairperson is elected by the full Board and is required to meet regularly with key 

executives; 

(d) the board is to establish measurable board gender diversity objectives and assess 

annually the objectives and progress in achieving them; 

(e) the Group is to maintain a mix of directors on the Board from different backgrounds with 

complementary skills and experience; and, 

(f) the Board is required to undertake an annual Board performance review and consider 
the appropriate mix of skills required by the Board to maximise its effectiveness and its 

contribution to the Group.   

The board seeks to ensure that: 

(a) at any point in time, its membership represents an appropriate balance between 

directors with experience and knowledge of the group and directors with an external or 

fresh perspective; and 

(b) the size of the board is conducive to effective discussion and efficient decision-making. 

Board members 

Details of the members of the Board, their experience, expertise, qualifications, term of office and 

independent status  are set out in the directors’ report under the heading “Directors''.  

Directors’ Independence 

The Board has adopted specific principles in relation to directors’ independence.  These state that to be 

independent, a director must be a non-executive and: 

(a) not be a substantial shareholder of the Group or an officer of, or otherwise associated 

directly with, a substantial shareholder of the Group; 
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(b) within the last three years, not have been employed in an executive capacity by the 

Company or any other Group member, or been a director after ceasing to hold any such 

employment; 

(c) within the last three years not have been a principal of a material professional adviser or 

a material consultant to the Company or any other Group member, or an employee 

materially associated with the service provided; 

(d) not be a material supplier or customer of the Company or any other Group member, or 

an officer of or otherwise associated directly or indirectly with a material supplier or 

customer; 

(e) must have no material contractual relationship with the Company or a controlled entity 

other than as a director of the Group; and 

(f) be free from any interest and any business or other relationship which could, or could 

reasonably be perceived to, materially interfere with the directors’ ability to act in the 

best interests of the Company. 

Materiality for these purposes is determined on both a quantitative and qualitative bases. An amount of 

over 5% of annual turnover of the Company or Group or 5% of the individual directors’ net worth is 

considered material for these purposes.   

In addition, a transaction of any amount or a relationship is deemed material if knowledge of it may 

impact the shareholders’ understanding of the directors performance. 

Recent thinking on corporate governance has introduced the view that a directors’ independence may 

be perceived to be impacted by lengthy service on the Board.  To avoid any potential concerns, the 

Board has determined that a director will not be deemed independent if he or she has served on the 

Board of the Company for more than ten years.   

Term of Office 

The Company’s Constitution specifies that all directors, other than a managing director, must retire from 
office no later than the third annual general meeting following their last election.  Where eligible, a 

director may stand for re-election. 

Commitment 

The number of meetings of the Company’s Board of directors and of each Board committee held each 

year, and the number of meetings attended by each director is disclosed in the Company’s Annual 

Report. 

It is the Company’s practice to allow executive directors to accept appointments outside the Company 

with approval of the Board.    The commitments of non-executive directors are considered by the Board 

prior to the directors’ appointment to the Board of the Company and are to be reviewed each year as 

part of the annual performance assessment. 

Prior to appointment or being submitted for re-election, each non-executive director is required to 

specifically acknowledge that they have and will continue to have the time available to discharge their 

responsibilities to the Company. 

Conflict of interests 

Directors are required to avoid conflicts of interest and immediately inform the Board should a conflict 

of interest arise. Directors are also required to advise of any relevant interest that may result in a 

conflict. The Board has adopted use of formal standing notices in which directors disclose any material 

personal interests and the relationship of these interests to the affairs of the Company. A director is  
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required to notify the Company of any material personal interest or if there is any change in the nature 

or extent of a previously disclosed interest. 

Independent professional advice 

Directors and Board committees have the right, in connection with their duties and responsibilities, to 

seek independent professional advice at the company’s expense.  Prior written approval of the 

Chairperson is required, but this will not be unreasonably withheld. 

Nominations and Remuneration 

Due to the small size of the Board, nomination and remuneration matters are addressed by the Board.  

A set of guidelines has been established in this regard.   

Board Performance Assessment 

The Board has developed an annual self-assessment process for its collective performance, the 

performance of the Chairperson and its committees.  A questionnaire is to be completed by each 

director, evaluating his or her individual performance, that of other Board members and of the Board as 

a whole.  The results and any action plans are to be documented together with specific performance 

goals which are to be agreed for the coming year. 

The Board intends to undertake its first annual assessment in the coming year. 

 

Principle 3:  Promote ethical and responsible decision making 

Code of Conduct 

The Company has developed a Code of Conduct (the Code) which has been fully endorsed by the Board 

and applies to all directors and employees.    The Code is regularly reviewed and updated as necessary 

to ensure it reflects the highest standards of behaviour and professionalism and the practices 

necessary to maintain confidence in the Group’s integrity. 

In summary, the Code requires that at all times all Company personnel act with the utmost integrity, 

objectivity and in compliance with the letter and the spirit of the law and Company policies. 

Trading in Company Securities 

The purchase and sale of Company securities by directors and employees is only permitted during the 

four week period following the annual general meeting, release of the half yearly and annual financial 

results to the market, except with written authority in accordance with the Company’s Securities Trading 

Policy.  Any transactions undertaken must be notified to the Chairperson in advance.   

The directors are satisfied that the Group has complied with its policies on ethical standards, including 

trading in securities. 

Diversity policy 

The Company values diversity and recognises the benefits it can bring to the organisation’s ability to 

achieve its goals.  Accordingly the Company has developed a diversity policy. This policy outlines the 

Company’s diversity objectives in relation to gender, age, cultural background and ethnicity.  It includes 

requirements for the board to establish measurable objectives for achieving diversity, and for the board 

to assess annually both the objectives, and the Company’s progress in achieving them. 

The table below illustrates the number of women employees and percentage of total workforce in the 

Group, senior executive positions and on the Board as at 31 December 2013. 
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31 Dec 2013 31 Dec 2012 

 
Total % of Total Total % of Total 

Number of women employees in the Group 47 60% 49 57% 

Number of women in senior executive roles 0 0% 0 0% 

Number of women on the Board 1 33% 1 33% 

 

Principle 4:  Safeguard integrity in financial reporting 

Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee for the period ended 31 December 2013 was not yet established.  The Board 

intends to establish an Audit Committee during the year ending 31 December 2014.  The Audit 

Committee responsibilities and policy will be established in accordance with the policy below. 

When in place, the audit committee will consist of two non-executive directors, as disclosed in the 

Annual Report.  

Details of these directors’ qualifications and attendance at audit committee meetings will be set out in 

the directors’ report in the Annual Report. 

All members of the audit committee will be financially literate and have an appropriate understanding of 

the industries in which the group operates. 

The audit committee will operate in accordance with a charter.  The main responsibilities of the 

committee are to: 

(a) review, assess and approve the annual full and concise reports, the half year financial 
report and all other financial information published by the company or released to the 

market; 

(b) assist the board in reviewing the effectiveness of the organisation’s internal control 

environment covering: 

(c) effectiveness and efficiency of operations; 

(d) reliability of financial reporting; 

(e) compliance with applicable laws and regulations; 

(f) oversee the effective operation of the risk management framework; 

(g) recommend to the board the appointment, removal and remuneration of the external 

auditors, and review the terms of their engagement, the scope and quality of the audit 

and assess performance; 

(h) consider the independence and competence of the external auditor on an ongoing basis; 

(i) review and approve the level of non-audit services provided by the external auditors and 

ensure it does not adversely impact on auditor independence; 

(j) review and monitor related party transactions and assess their propriety; and 

(k) report to the board on matters relevant to the committee’s role and responsibilities. 
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In fulfilling its responsibilities, the audit committee will: 

(a) receive regular reports from management and the external auditors; 

(b) meet with external auditors at least twice a year, or more frequently if necessary; 

(c) review the processes the MD and CFO have in place to support their certifications to the 

board; and 

(d) review any significant disagreements between the auditors and management, 

irrespective of whether they have been resolved. 

The audit committee will have authority, within the scope of its responsibilities, to seek any information 

it requires from any employee or external party. 

External Auditors 

The Company policy is to appoint external auditors who clearly demonstrate quality and independence.  

The performance of the external auditor is reviewed annually and applications for tender of external 

audit services are requested as deemed appropriate, taking into consideration assessment of 

performance, existing value and tender costs.  Pitcher Partners was appointed as the external auditor in 

2012.   

An analysis of fees paid to the external auditors, including a break-down of fees for non-audit services, 

is provided in the directors’ report and in the notes to the financial statements contained in the Annual 

Report.  The external auditors provide an annual declaration of their independence to the audit 

committee in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. 

The external auditor attends the annual general meeting to be available to answer shareholder 

questions about the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the audit report. 

 

Principle 5 and 6: Make timely and balanced disclosures and respect the rights of shareholders 

Continuous disclosure and shareholder communication 

The Company has policies and procedures on information disclosure that focus on continuous 
disclosure of any information concerning the Group that a reasonable person would expect to have a 

material effect on the price of the Company’s securities.  These policies and procedures also include 

the arrangements the Company has in place to promote communication with shareholders and 

encourage effective participation at general meetings.  

 

Principle 7:  Recognise and manage risk 

Risk assessment and management 

The Board is responsible for satisfying itself annually, or more frequently as required, that management 

has developed and implemented a sound system of risk management and internal control.  Detailed 

work on this task is delegated to the audit committee and reviewed by the full board. 

The audit committee is responsible for ensuring there are adequate policies in relation to risk 

management, compliance and internal control systems.  They monitor the Company’s risk management 

by overseeing management’s actions in the evaluation, management, monitoring and reporting of 

material operational, financial, compliance and strategic risks.  In providing this oversight, the 

committee: 
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(a) reviews the framework and methodology for risk identification, the degree of risk the 

Company is willing to accept, the management of risk and the processes for auditing 

and evaluation the Company’s risk management system; 

(b) reviews group wide objectives in the context of the abovementioned categories of 

corporate risk; 

(c) reviews and, where necessary, approves guidelines and policies governing the 

identification, assessment and management of the Company’s exposure to risk;  

(d) reviews and approves the delegations of financial authorities and addresses any need to 

update these authorities on an annual basis, and 

(e) review compliance with agreed policies. 

 

The committee recommends any actions it deems appropriate to the board for its consideration.   

Responsibility for Risk Management and Internal control is delegated to the appropriate level of 

management within the Group, with the MD and CFO having ultimate responsibility to the Board for the 

risk management and internal control framework. 

The Group has a Risk Management Policy to formally document the policies and procedures already in 

place to manage risk.   

Considerable importance is placed on maintaining a strong control environment.  There is an 

organisation structure with clearly drawn lines of accountability and delegation of authority.  Adherence 

to the Code of Conduct is required at all times and the Board actively promotes a culture of quality and 

integrity. 

Corporate Reporting 

In complying with recommendation 7.3 of the ASX Corporate Governance Recommendations, the 

Managing Director and CFO have made the following certifications to the Board: 

(a) the Company’s financial reports are complete and present a true and fair view, in all 

material respects, of the financial condition and operational results of the Company and 

Group and are in accordance with relevant accounting standards; 

(b) the above statement is founded on a system of risk management and internal 

compliance and control which implements the policies adopted by the Board; and 

(c) the Group’s risk management and internal compliance and control framework is 

operating efficiently and effectively in all material respects in relation to financial 

reporting risks. 
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Principle 8:  Remunerate fairly and responsibly 

Remuneration 

Due to the small size of the Board, nomination and remuneration matters are addressed by the Board.  

A set of guidelines has been established in this regard.   

Each member of the senior executive team signs a formal employment contract at the time of their 

appointment covering a range of matters including their duties, rights, responsibilities and any 

entitlements on termination.  The standard contract refers to a specific formal job description.  This job 

description is reviewed by the Board on an annual basis and, where necessary, is revised in 

consultation with the relevant employee. 

Further information on directors’ and executives’ remuneration, including principles used to determine 

remuneration, is set out in the directors’ report under the heading ''Remuneration Report'' in the 

Company’s Annual Report. 

Non-executive directors do not receive options or bonus payments and are not provided with retirement 

benefits other than superannuation. 

The Board also assumes responsibility for overseeing management succession planning, including the 

implementation of appropriate executive development programmes and ensuring adequate 

arrangements are in place, so that appropriate candidates are recruited for later promotion to senior 

positions.   
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